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JOSEPH L. s:x:cHINI (Chainnan) : This is a meeting of the 

Assembly Law, Public Safety and Defense Committee. The purpose of this 

meeting this norning is to continue in relation to the hearings 
ooncerning A-3610, which delays the issuance of photo drivers' licenses 

until January 2, '86 as well as A-166 as a result of new information 
revealed on May 3 to this Ccmnittee in relation to a March 6 mem::>randum 

to Greg Stevens, Chief of Staff fran the Governor's office. 
I decided to oonvene the Conmittee today before voting on 

A-3610, in relation to certain events that todc place, and to determine 

whether or not the substance of A-3610 is such that it might require 

a further delay, or possibly amend the bill to a total deletion of 
photo drivers' licenses. 

Before we oegin with our first witness, l' would request that 
the sergeant at arms be aware-~ ( interjecting) Does anybody have a 

problem hearing? Jinmy, can we get sore sound in here? 
UNIDENTIFIED PERSCN: The engineer is on his way over. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: The engineer is on his way over.. Is 

the reporters-- Are they picking up"the audio for-- Are you picking 

up your audio sufficiently? (affirmative response fran reporters) 

Before we begin, I would request the sergeant at arms limit 

access to the chambers for the purpose of this hearing. Anyone else 
interested in listening may have seats in the balcony -- members of the 

Assembly staff, those partisans who are witnesses, other members of the 
Legislature, and members of the press. 

In addition, I would indicate to you that I have a letter, 
signed by Speaker Karcher, which indicates: "Dear Joe: I have 

appointed Assemblyman Martin Herman to the Assembly Law, Public Safety 
and Defense Coomi ttee in place of Assemblyman Nicholas LaRocca; this 
appointment being for today's Camri.ttee hearing.~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, may I ask if we have a 

list of witnesses? As a Camri.ttee member, I don't have a list of those 

who are supposed to testify. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: The witnesses that are. scheduled to 

testify before the Coomittee this norning are Cliff Snedeker, Greg 

Stevens, Attorney General Kinmelman, Director Robert Kline, H. Arthur 
Smith, and Torn Cannon. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: May I ask the positions of the last two 

witnesses? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: The positions of the last two 

witnesses, as I believe you are aware, Mr. Schuber - Mr. Smith is the 
Press. Secretary or Information · Officer for the Division of Motor 

Vehicles; Mr. · Cannon is the Press Secretary.· or Information Officer for 
the Attorney.General's offi~. 

- . 

If I may., at this time I would request Greg Stevens as our 

first witness, please? 
¥fore we begin with you, Mr. Stevens, if I may, just for the 

record- Before beginning, I would like to indicate for the record, I 

discussed, just prior ·to the beginning of this meeting; with Arthur 
Smith, fran the Division of Motor Vehicles, sane items concerning the 
press release regarding Sears.and Taggart's. 

Mr. Smith? please correct me if I am inaccurate; it is my 

B. AR1'HtJR SMITH: Back here (speaking fran a~ience} 

ASSEMBLYMAN a::>CCHINI.: Please correct me if I am inaccurate. 

It is my understanding that -there was a press release, originally 

prepared by you with the inclusion of Taggarts--
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Sunday, March 10. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: On Sunday, March 10. 
MR. SMITH: That. is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: · Subsequent thereto, at a meeting-­

Or, subsequent .to a meeting on·March 11, between Mr. Stevens, the A.G., 
Mr. Snedeker,· and also subsequent to a meeting after that·meeting with 

Mr. Snedeker, Mr. Taggart, and Mr. Kline, you were informed to withdraw 
the name of Taggart fran your press release, is that correct? 

MR. SMITH:· We did not submit the press release to anyone 
.. until the meeting at 12: 30, if I remember correctly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCX::CHINI: I'm sorry. Can you step up here? 

MR. KIMMEI.lt1AN: Mr. Chairman, why don't we have the gentleman 

sit down here to testify, instead of talking fran the bade of the hall. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: Art, can you just step up here for a 

second? 
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I'm sorry, Arthur. You indicated, in relation to my 

representation that subsequent ter- on March 1 0, you prepared an 

original press release that had the inclusion of Taggarts, is that 
correct? 

MR. SMITH: That is correct, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: That m::>rning, you told us-

MR. SMITH: That m::>rning it was typed up and it was in final 
form at approximately 12:30. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And the Director was aware of that? 

MR. SMITH: He saw it at 12:30, when I presented it to him. 

ASSEMBLYMAN 10:CHINI: And that was on the 10. th? 

MR. SMITH: No, the 11th. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And in the norning he had a meeting with 

the Attorney General and Mr. Stevens, and others, is that correct? 

MR. SMITH: To the best of my knowledge, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And after that meeting - sometime after 

that meeting, after a meeting in Motor Vehicles, you were instructed by 

the Director to rerrove the name of Taggart? 

MR. SMITH: Yes, I was. He also told me though that if a 

direct question was raised, I could reinsert that at the time of -

once the release was out; I could answer any questions. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: In other words, take it out, but if 

saneone then asked, you could say. 

MR. SMITH: we also took out the $2.20 canmission fee. That 

question.was raised and I subsequently informed everyone of the fee the 

Division was paying for each photo license process. 
ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: Did Mr. cannon have any part in 

helping you prepare that press release? 

MR. SMITH: The press release was submitted to Mr. Cannon on 

the 1~I believe. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: On the 12th. 

MR. SMITH: It went through several drafts. The final draft 

went over, with the Attorney General making the announcement, and Mr. 

Cannon then added some additional material fran the Attorney General. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN In:OiINI : However, it was subsequent to the 

meetings with the Attorney General, Mr. Snedeker, and Mr. Stevens that 

you were requested to remove Taggarts fran that press release, is that 
correct? 

MR. SMITH: It was following the meeting I had with the. 

Director, Deputy Director, and Mr. Taggart 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: (interrupting) Which was also-

MR. SMITH: 

previous·meeting. 

(continuing) -at 12: 30, which was after the 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: Did Mr. Taggart see the initial prei:;s 

release you had prepared? He was aware that his name was in it? 
MR. SMITH: Yes, he was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, was there corrrnent by him to remove 

his name? 

MR. SMITH: There was sane concern on his part because of 

Sears' policy of not liking to have its venders publicized. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, he made a request to remove his 

name? 

MR. SMITH: Yes, he did. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Thank you, Mr. Smith. I would 

appreciate it if you would stay for a while, Art; we have sane other 
questions of you. 

Mr. Stevens, please? (whereupon Mr. Stevens is seated at 

witness table) Mr. Stevens, Mr. Snedeker, said in an interview on 

April 10, 1985, that the Attorney General approved Taggart's selection 
of the photo I.D. license contracts, is that correct? 

GREG:>RY S. STEVENS: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN In:OiINI: When was that? 

MR. STEVENS: When was the approval? 

ASSEMBLYMAN In:OUNI: Yes. 

MR. STEVENS: By the Attorney General? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ln:OiINI: Correct. 

MR. STEVENS: I assume it was on the-
ASSEMBLYMAN . HERMAN: (interrupting) 

sir? I am having difficult hearing you. 
~. STEVENS: March 11th. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BCXCHINI: So, this was then after Mr. Snedeker's 

March 6, '85 mem::> to you, is that oorrect? 
MR. STEVENS: Correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B::>COUNI: . The Governor is reported to have a 

· report outlining the cirCLUnStances surrounding the selection of 

Taggart's to issue photo drivers' licenses in 21 Sears Stores. Is that 
a written report? 

MR. STEVENS: '!hat is what I sutmitted to you rocments ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:. While we are looking at this, this 

oonstitutes the report that was prepared after the Governor instructed 
you to make a report? 

MR. STEVENS: The Governor requested that I determine why 

Mr. Taggart's name was omitted fran the press release, and I made that 

request to Mr. Snedeker, and that is the report that he submitted to 
me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: '!here was indications that this 

particular mem::>randurn was nonexistent; that originally the report to 
the Governor was oral. 

MR. STEVENS: I don't knCM where those indications came fran, 
rut that's--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) That's not accurate? 

MR. STE.VENS: That's not accurate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXCHINI: Excuse me--

MR. STEVENS: That may be referring to my briefing of the 

Governor, which was oral, prior to the announcement of the photo 
licensing program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I beg yOUrpardon, sir? 

MR. STEVENS: I said you may be referring to my briefing of 
the Governor, which was prior to the announcement of the photo 
licensing program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Prior to the initial press release? 

MR. STEVENS: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Of March 11 or 12, or whenever that was 

issued? Well, was the Governor aware of who was getting the oontract? 
MR. STEVENS: Yes, I believe so. 

5 



ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, he was aware that it was Sears and 

Taggart? 

MR. STEVENS: That's correct •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, it would be fair to sey that the 

Go\Ternor and you were aware, at the time of the initial press release, 
that Mr. Taggart was actually · the real party beneficiary of that 

contract? 

MR. STEVENS: I wouldn't characterize him as the real party 
beneficiary of·· the contract. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: But, he was the recipient of the 

oontract? 

MR. STEVENS: He was involved in the contract, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: He was the party in interest, I think 
would be the better tenninology to that, Mr. Hemian. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Contract, or whatever. 
MR. STEVENS: Correct. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: If I may, Mr. Stevens, the report that 

you just handed to us, dated April 11-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: ( interrupting) Excuse me, Greg. Maybe 

you could pull that mike - the first one. I think it may register. I 

c311 not sure which is which. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: This is a report signed by - or at 

least, or signed by Mr. Snedeker, is that correct? 

MR. STEVENS: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: This was not prepared by you? 
MR. STEVENS: No, obviously. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: In The Star Ledger, on April 13, Mr. 

Golden indicates: "The report contained no evidence of wrongdoing, but 

simply outlined what was done, hoo it was done, and why it was done." 

Golden said., "The Administration felt it was not necessary at this time 

to disclose the internal report. It doesn't contain anything that the 
Governor has not already said." 

The other newspaper accounts which ref er, in reference to a 
document- Was or was not there a document? 
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MR. STEVENS: The only documents that I am aware of are the 

two menorandum. The first, that was submitted to me on March 6, and· 

the second, which was the report that I requested fran the former 

Director of the Motor Vehicles, regarding why Taggart International was 
left-· or anitted fran the original announcement. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: What was the purpose of the March 6, 

1985, meno to you? 

MR. STEVENS: The purpose of that- The March 6 memo? 
ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: Yes, sir. 

MR. STEVENS: The purpose of that meno was - as far as I am 

concerned, was to provide information to the Governor's office as to 

the outline of the program; to ascertain whether the Governor's office 
would support the implementation of that program; and how to deal w~th 

an announ~nt program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI : One week before they were announcing . 

the program, or the program was formally announced, you were just being 
questioned as to whether or not you could support the program? 

MR. STEVENS: That's correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI : Do you have a copy of that available 

in front of you? 
MR. STEVENS: Yes, I do. 

ASSP.MBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: All right. If you look at the very 
last paragraph, it says: "Your pranpt attention to this matter will be 

greatly appreciated. Please contact us if you have any questions 
concerning the foregoing." 

When did you contact Mr. Snedeker subsequent to your receipt 
of this menorandum? 

MR. STEVENS: I believe Mr. Snedeker contacted me directly, a 
few days after that meno was received by my office, and requested a 

meeting with me, at which point I agreed to a meeting, am we set up 
the meeting for March 11 • 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCXCHINI: And who was at that meeting? 
MR. STEVENS: In attendance at that meeting were former 

Director Cliff Snedeker, current Acting Director, Bob Kline, Attorney 
General Kimmelman, myself, and my deputy, Ed McGlynn. 

ASSE'.MBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: And that meeting was held where? 
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offices? 

MR. STEVENS: In my office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :SCX:CHINI: That's located within the Governor's 

MR. STEVENS: Yes. 

A5SEMBLYMAN OClCCHINI: was that the Governor's conference 

r0001 you used?. 
MR. STEVENS: It is my office. 

ASSEMBLYMANBCX:CHINI: In your office? 
MR. STEVENS: Yes. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN· :SCX:CHINI: was the Governor there that day? 
MR. STEVENS: No. He was not in the meeting; I don't recall 

whether he was in the building that day or not. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: So, collectively, to the best of your 

recollection, what was discussed in relation to this request for advice 
fran Mr. Snedeker? 

MR. STEVENS: Essentially, the meeting was approximately 20 
minutes. long. The meeting began with Director Snedeker and then Deputy 

Director Kline outlining the program, suggesting very strongly that 

this was a very positive program and sanething that the State needed to 

go forward with. At sare point - probably 10 minutes into the meeting 
- I began to ask a series of questions aoout the program. I believe 

that the first question I asked was whether anyone else - whether any 
other business could handle this project - program. I was given very 

strong assurances that Taggart was, in fact, the best canpany, or firm, 

to handle this project. 
I asked a number of questions. My recollection is that I 

asked whether it was legal; I asked whether it was ethical; and, I was, 

again, given very strong assurances by both Director Snedeker, as well 
as the Attorney General, that the answers to those questions were in 

the affirmative. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, as far as you are concerned, as a 

result of conversations with the Attorney General and Mr. Snedeker 

concerning your concerns about ethical and legal questions, which I 

assume you would have on behalf of the Governor, you were assured at 
that time that there was no problem? 

MR. STEVENS: Yes, very strongly. 
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orally. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Very strongly? 

MR. STEVENS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: It seems these assurances were given 
I 

MR. STEVENS: That's correct. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN MARI'IN: 

conversation between you and--
In a- During the length of this 

MR. STEVENS: (interrupting} The meeting, as I recall it, 

was essentially in two tiers: The first tier was, as I said, the 

Director aoo the Deputy Director outlining the program; the secooo tier 

consisted of my asking a series of questions, which the Attorney 

General aoo the Director and Deputy Director responded to. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Greg, in that response I assume -- not 

being a wise guy about it - that there was a two-tier concern: One, 

obviously being a positive m::>ve to make the State look good; you felt 

it would have that impact. I assume that, being the Governor's Chief 

of Staff; you wanted to make sure that none of the negatives where 

there would be no identification -- negative identification because 

Mr. Taggart was a past contributor? w:>uld that be fair to say? 

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Taggart's contributions had nothing to do 

with it as far as I was concerned. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: It was never discussed? Well, let me 

ask you-- I mean, we are all part of the political process. 

MR. STEVENS: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And we all cane out of it. I don't 

think that that is any great secret to everyone here. It's ho.v I rcean 

that at . that particular meeting there was no discussion about Mr. 

Taggart and whether this would be so-called a "favorite son contract," 

for want of a better definition? 

MR. STEVENS: There was discussion of Mr. Taggart, but there 

was certainly no discussion about being any kind of favorite son, in 

your words. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: In other words, so there was no 

political discussion of th- at all? 

MR. STEVENS: Not at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OCX:::CHINI: Did you see Mr. Taggart that day? 
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MR. STEVENS: No, I did not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN" HERMAN: In regard to this sane particular 
meeting, I am sanewhat curious. Had you ever involved -- been involved 

before, as the Governor's Chief of Staff, in the appointment of a notor 
vehicle agent? 

MR. STEVENS: Not directly, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: can you perhaps tell us how this meeting 

came to be? Why, if you've never been involved directly- By 

iooirection, I assume saneone may have flown sane names by you, fran 

time to time, as to whether it would-be a good appointee? 
MR. STEVENS: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And we all accept that presently as part 

of the process. But, why, for this particular event, when there was 

no ever- when there was never any other sudl meeting, why a neeting 

for awarding a contract to Taggart? Who requested the meeting? 

MR. STEVENS: As I said earlier, forner Director Snedeker 
requested the meeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: With you? 

MR. STEVENS: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And the Attorney General? 

MR. srEVENS: That's correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:. And, could you tell us- Didn't you ask 

him why he didn't handle it on his own, why he asked you for the 

meeting? 
MR. srEVENS: Well, it is very, very . typical for departments 

and · agencies throughout State government to come to the Governor's 
· office and to brief the Governor's office on a program, on which it is 

going to embark, at least to familiarize the Governor's office with the 
program; in this case, to ascertain whether the Governor's office would 

support the implementation of the program~ And, that's essentially 
what happened. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And that is done in a department? For 
instance, there is a major contract in Transportation or DEP, and all 

those needs a Ccmnissioner to cane before you with the contracts? 
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MR. STEVENS: I didn't look at this--. We didn't look at this 

as the awarding of a contract. · we looked. at this as the implementation . 

of a program to serve the public o~ New Jersey. 

ASSE:MBLYMAN SCHUBER:· To what extent were you aware · of the 

fact that Sears preferred anonymity to those with whan it was going to 

enter into a contract like this as another party of'interest? 
. MR. STEVENS: I was aware of that to the extent that that was 

contained in the original March 6 mem:> to me fran Director Snedeker, 

arx:i it was also discussed in the meeting that · sears preferred not to 

name their concessionaries. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Do you knCM-- were you given any 

explanation as to why that would be so? 

MR. STEVENS: Only that I think Sears has awarently - and I 

don't know this firsthand, but apparently has a large number of people 

where they do business with, who work in~- actually have businesses 

within their stores and operations, and Sears doesn't want to publicize 

·the fact that their tobacco concession is not run by Sears. It is not 

a Sears operation, although it says Sears. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You understood, though, that sears 

would be a beneficiary, at least to sorre extent, as far as this 
oontract goes? 

MR. STEVENS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: · Mr. Stevens, relating back to that . 

rneno and your meeting, the meno . indicates under policy questions 

thereof that the Administration must determine the manner in which they 

want to announce the implertentation of this program. 

Now, was there a discussion concerning the deletion or 

exclusion of Taggart's in relation to the press release? 

MR. STEVENS: Absolutely not, and if there had been, I would 

not have tolerated it. I think it is well known by the­

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: ( interrupting) You didn't think-· 

MR. STEVENS: Can I finish, please? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINl: Please. 

MR. STEVENS: I think it is well known by the workiBJ press 

in this State, as well as the public, that this Administra.tion has a 
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reputation -- has denonstrated openness, candor, forthrightness at all 

times. I certairily would not have permitted that to happen had I known 

in advance that Taggart .·was· not going to be included in the press 

release. . In fact that's-
ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: (interrupting) But, my question was-

MR. STEVENS: · (continuing) That's the reason I ell\ here 
today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: was Taggart' s discussed at that time 
in relation to any press release? 

MR. STEVENS: No. 

ASSSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: The preparation of a press release? 

MR. STEVENS: No, it was not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Taggart' s name . was never brought · up at 

that meeting? 

MR. STEVENS: Taggart'$ name was obviously brought \JP. because 

they were involved in the . contract. But, there was no discussion, 

absolutely no discussion, at that . meeting regarding whether or not to 

include Taggart's n~ in the press release, or the announcement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI.: · So then what was the Administration's 

advice in which the announcement of the implementation of this program 

would take place? 

MR. STEVENS: It wasn't a matter of advice; it was a matter 
of-- It was essentially a request by the Director, which is, again, 

extremely routine, on the part of departnents arxl agencies throughout 

g0\7ernment, to cane to the Governor.' s off ice and say: "Would the 

Governor.like to be involved in this announcement?" 
I believe Director Snedeker asked that question. I indicated 

that that was not the case, and at that p:>int, al.JroSt simultaneously, 

the Attorney General indicated that he would handle the announcement of 

the release -. or, the announcement of .· the program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: You . indicated that there was a 

discussion concerning the legality of the contract, is that correct? 
MR. STEVENS: I asked that question, that's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B<XCHINI: Was there ever any indication: "Well, 
· the contract is betweenfl -- what is it, services, Inc.? -- "Driver 

License Services, Inc., arid not the Sears?" 
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MR. STEVENS: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Stevens, if I might interrupt, I 

thought that the purpose of this hearing was to discuss Assembly Bill 

3610, which is the im ••• - delay the impleirentation of the photo I.D. 

licenses. I am not sure, fran the questions, whether it still is. 

Let ne ask you this: As a result of the neetings that you 

had-- that took place on this particular issue, would it be fair to 

say that the photo I .D. 's were being- that there was a delay in 

issuing the photo I .D. 's pursuant to the time limits in the statute? 

Did that ccxre out at your neeting? 

MR. STEVENS: What came out of the neeting - and is 

included, again, in the memos - is that the tine was past due, under 

the legislative mandate to get this program going. In fact, there's a 

great deal of pressure fran the Legislature - particular members of 

the Legislature -- on the Division of Motor Vehicles to get this 

program up and running. And, it came out in the neeting that the best 
way, the most econanic way, the rrost efficient way, to get this program 

going, and do it in a fashion that would best serve the public, would 
be to go with this Sears' proposal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: So, the purpose of this, as a result of 

your discussions and what you know is to make available, at rrore 

convenient locations, or rrore locations around the State rrore 

opportunities for citizens to get their photo I.D. 's, and that was 

really the purpose here, is that correct? 

MR. STEVENS: The entire purpose, as I understood it, was to 

improve the convenience for the public. Currently, it is very 

difficult for people to get to Motor Vehicle agencies because of the 

time, the hours, the fact that they are not open on weekends, and this 

provided a great opportunity because these Sears stores are located in 

population - in areas of dense population, and so forth. It would 

make it much more convenient for the public, and that was the goal of 

the program as far as I understood it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Taking up on where Bill Schuber 1eft off 

on dealing with legislation for a little bit, was there discussion, 

perhaps, as to whether it \\Uuld be appropriate for a coopany, which 
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also had a major market in the insurance industry, raised with the 

Attorney General as being a potential conflict with the sale of the 
notor vehicle licenses -- whether that would constitute any restrain of 

trade, or create a problem? 
MR. STEVENS: That question never arose, or never was 

discussed in my presence. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Has that question-- Sticking with 

improving the process,. has that question since been discussed as a 

matter of policy with the Governor's office, concerning whether or not 

we ought to be mixing and matdling those who sell insurance aoo those 
who sell - you know notor vehicle, services? Has that been 

discussed? 
MR. STEVENS: It may have been discussed. It has not been 

discussed with me. · 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Are you in a position to relate what the 

Governor's position may be on that today? 
MR. STEVENS: No, I 'm not. · 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Are you in a position to relate what the 
Governor's position is on the Kalik legislation? I believe I read the 

transcript last time the- the last hearing, and the Attorney General 
expressed support for the Kalik bill. Do you know what the Governor's 

position is on legislation such as Mrs. Kalik's? 
MR. STEVENS: Can you outline to me what the Kalik bill says? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yes, that's the bill involving public 
bidding for the notor veh.icle services ~ -

specifically, the Kalik legislation. But, I think the idea of going to 
public bidding for Motor Vehicle agencies is one that we are pursuing 

and are very, very interested in. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Are you aware that-- not nodesty,· but on 

a bipartisan basis- in 1980, there was a legislative report in whidl 
Mrs. Kalik's bill I believe was sanewhat formed, reccxnmending that we 

go to public bidding? 
MR. STEVENS: I've heard about that report, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: May I ask you- You made sane 
observations which I think I would like to pursue, if I .may. You 
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indicated that this Administration is - the hallmark of this 

Administration has been known for its candor, and honesty, and fairness 
in its disclosure. And, given that fact, I have to ask you that you 

knew,. before the press release< was issued, that Taggart was involved. 

You obviously knew, as Chief of Staff , after the press release was 

issued, that Taggart was not mentioned, that only Sears was mentioned. 
Did you ever say to the Governor: "Governor, it's--" "You 

kn0t1, I believe that there is a potential problem here. . I h.a:1 a · 

meeting in my office, at the request of Director Snedeker. 'lhe 

Attorney General was there. We discussed awarding this contract to 

Mr. Taggart, yet, the press release said Sears?" Was there any such · 

discussion? 
MR. srEVENs: No, there was no such discussion, and, frankly, 

I did not personally becane aware of the fact that Taggart was anitted 

fr(Jll the press release until I read about it in the newspapers two 

weeks later. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You· mean a whole non th· went by before· 

you, as the Chief of Staff, were aware that Mr. Taggart was not 

publicly involved, at least frcm the perception of the public? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, I 'rn going to start to 

object to sane of these questions. 

MR. STEVENS: I'd like to answer that question, please. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I think he is capable. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Well, I just would like to-­

ASSEMBLYMAN S:X::CHINI: If I may-:--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, I just would like to say 

that I appreciate where the line of sane of these questions are going, 

but the fact of the matter is that the ostensible purpose here is to 
discuss whether we are going to delay the inplernentation of photo . 

licensing or not. 
I. have no problem with dealing with that particular issue, 

but I think that the questions here are going a little far afield, to 

the point of alnost inquisition on an issue that is before the SCI at 

the present time, which I understood fran the. Assembly resolution that 

was passed and the Senate resolution that was passed, that that was the 

proper forum for it. 
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The questions right here rKM with regard to that are-- · You 

knCM, I don't knCMwhy we needed that resolution for if we are going to 

take up that activity at the present time. I think that is where the 

questions are going. 

What Mr. Stevens said to the Governor, or what he felt, I 

really don't think is germane to the issue that we are talking about 

today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOXHINI: If I might, Mr. Herman, Mr. Schuber­

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I really-- I think that this is sure 

to take on a political overtone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN 9JCCHINI: Mr. Schuber, I'm inclined to agree 

with you because regardless of what anyone wants to say - you knCM, 
politics and government, · at times you cannot separate them. If you 

want to say it takes on· a political overtone, you have every right to 

say that. HCMever, at the same time, if you don't think that the 

procedure for appointing photo license agents, and hCM the selection of 

those photo license agents are germane, that is your prerogative. 

HCMever, I think the line of questioning by Mr. Herman in 

relation to this is proper. I'd ask him to continue with his 

questioning. I believe, Mr. Stevens was in the process 

.remember what the question was --- to give an answer. 

if he can 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Mr. Chairman, before we begin, just so I 

knCM, or at least you can help me with the line, where, in fact, do we 

draw the line between what we are supposed to be doing today and the 
SCI, which is going to be taking on the other activity? 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: This has nothing to do with the SCI, 
Mr. Martin. This, Assemblyman Martin, is dealing with Assembly Bill, 

' 
A-3610, as well as Assembly Bill, A-166; and if this- Mr. Martin, 

the circumstances surrounding the entire handling of this situation is 

very integral and germane to both pieces of legislation, especially in 

relation to A-3610, when we are talking about a delay in photo 

licensing. The question that has care to my mind, over the last 

several days, is a six-month delay sufficient, or might we need a 

longer delay, or should we, possibly, at this point, consider an 

absolute elimination of the photo drivers' license until sane type of a 
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program could be set up that everyone in this State understands and 

everybody is being treated fairly? 

-ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And those questions, Mr. Chairman,.are 

the _kinds of questions l think that Mr. · Stevens is weU equipped to 

answer today, if they were asked before-- --

ASSEMBLYMAN En:CHINI: Well, if You allow us to continue with 

the line of questioning, I will c-ertainly hope that we can elicit 

that. I don't believe--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: ( interrupting) we would hope SO. too, 

Mr. Chainnan, -but that is not the questions that are being elicited 
here. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: I think i can deferrl myself, and 1 think 

the point simply is this: We are here discussing a couple of bills. 

we' re discussing just exactly how these bills · impact, arrl what has 

occurred, and -how these bills implement. All the people around this· · 

roan are not sitting here_ because this is not a matter of public 

conc-ern. They wouldn't have major T.V. stations here and press fran 

all over this State here is this isn't a matter of public conc-ern. --

I think I asked sane questions to Mr. Stevens about whether 

he even knows what the Governor's position was on a few of these 

bills. I, have been trying to enunciate sane of that, but I think 

background information is important. These are questions, Mr. Sdluber 

and Mr. Martin, I'd not only ask a Republican administration, but I 

- have a record of asking them all the wey back to DenDcratic 

administrations. 

With your pennission, Mr. Chainnan, I would like to prOC'eed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI:. Please continue. 
I 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Do you remember the last question, 

prOC'eeding about-

MR. STEVENS: I would like to have it restated, please. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I asked you exactly how it came to be 

that this nonth' s hiatus and why there was no response in-between. I 

think you started to say that you were not aware in-between before you 

read it in whatever paper first published it. 
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MR. STEVENS: Frankly, the truth · of the matter is that I 

review in excess of ·- as I am sure the Canmi ttee members do - in · 

excess of 100, or rrore, news clippings per day. I read a great volume 

of mail. I review a great bit of correspondence arx:i mem:>randum. I 

typically read the headline and the first few paragraphs of a news 

story, and, very honestly, it simply did not junp out at ne. It did 
not, you know, it just did not jump out at ne, and if it had, I 

certainly would have acted, and that's what I have tried to tell you 
here today. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: You had- That's sooe of the things 
that bothers me because I know you to be a very thorough guy. We are 

allowed to canplinent too, are 'Ne not? That's not, ah-

And, I am just wondering why, for instance after the Governor 

held a press conference - you know, all the articles about angry 

Governor. Kean -. and then instructed you, or directed you to prepare 

sane sort of a meno for him, or investigation-

MR. STEVENS: He asked ne for a report. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN:· Well, whatever it is. He asked you for 

a report a report, a meno, whatever. Why you didn't say to him 

inmediately, "Governor, I was in on that m:eting on March 11" - or did 

you tell me you already had told him that or, before his press 

conference? I think you did tell us that -- that the Governor was 

aware that you already had had that conference with the Attorney 

General and Cliff Snedeker. 

MR. STEVENS: That's right. I advised the Governor of that 

the day after the rreeting, which was the day before the announcement. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, I assume it would be fair to say 

/ 
if you didn't know it for a rronth- Obviously, you said you would have 

said sariething. I think it's also -- it would be fair to oonclude then 

that if the Governor, who already kne,; prior to the so-called press 

disclosure of Taggart not being disclosed, if he was aware of it, I 

asswne that he would have said sanething, or may issued a directive to 

the A.G. or the Motor Vehicle people to oorrect it. 

So, it is fair to say that, although the Governor arx:i you 
I 

both knew it scmetime in March, obviously once Sears was announced, you 

'Nent on to other business and it never cane to mind. 
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MR. STEVENS: '!here was nothing about, you know, that story, 

as I Sjaid, that jumped out at me. Obviously, in retrospect, I would 
have preferred to have known about it i.Imnediately, and I would have 

taken action if I had known imnediately. 
It's probably, Assemblyman, the one thing that I personally 

regret about this whole affair, in terms of my own personal 
involvement, that I did not notice that right &May. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I note in a couple of papers, and I just 

would like--

MR. STEVENS: (interrupting) I think you have to understand, 
Assemblyman, that before all the political propaganda about this began, 

that this was not a big project, in terms of the Governor's office. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, one man's political propaganda is 

another newspaper's, ah, story, and, you know, I really object to the 

question of political propaganda because all the editorials that I have·· 

seen throughout the State do not exactly handle it as political 

propaganda. '!hey handle it as dead wrong. You would agree-- Have you 

seen any editorials suppor-ting - supporting that? 
MR. STEVENS: Assemblyman, I would certainly agree that the 

way this situation was handled was dead wrong. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So don't give me the political 

propaganda business. 
MR. SI'EVENS: But, I 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: 

object to the dlaracteriza ••••• 

also think that you'd have to-­

(interrupting) Mr. Chairman, I object. 
( also interrupting) Mr. Chainnan, I 

MR. STEVENS: (continuing) -agree that we would not be here 

today if it wasn't for the political year we are in. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Every year, sir, is a political year and 

doing things right and the wrong way are always ( inaudible, due to 
objection fran Canmittee rrernbers). 

ASSEMBLYMAN :SCX:CHINI: (interrupting) If I may, Mr. Herman-­
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: (continuing) -and Mr. Stevens, if we 

can stick to the substance of the meetings and your questions 
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concerning the handling of the disclosures, I'd prefer that, as opposed 

to what each of our p::>litical · reasons are for whatever we do or don't 
do. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: May I? In following the line, speaking 

governmenally, Mr. Stevens, I note fran sane of the newspaper accounts 

that it attributed to you that you requested Mr. Snedeker to resign. 
Is that true or not true? 

MR. STEVENS: '!bat is a personal matter between the Governor 
and a personal/private matter between the Governor and the former 

Director of Motor Vehicles, and out of respect for both men, I an not 
going to ccmnent any further on that. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: Let .me ask you this: Do you bel •••• -
Does the Governor of this State believe that a person who would hold a 

p::>lit •••• ...;_ who holds a public office, such as the Director who issues 

a resignation, that how he got to sutmit that resignation is a private 

matter: that there can be private matters involving the public danain: 
is that the Governor's p::>sition? 

MR. STEVENS: My position is that out of respect for both 
men, I am not going to cx:mment further on that situation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, do you know what the Governor's 
position is? 

MR. STEVENS: I think I have answered the question twice. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, it would be fair to say, in 

characterizing your testi.nony, that it· is the Gov ••••• -and I don't 

want to mischaracterize the Governor, because you are representing him 

here today. 
MR. STEVENS: No I'm not: I'm representing myself. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, is it the Governor's position, to· 
your knowledge, that this - that how Cliff Snedeker came to resign is 

a private matter and not a public one? 
MR. STEVENS: I will answer it one JtOre time: It is a matter 

between the Governor and the former Director of Motor Vehicles, and out 
of respect for both men, I am not going to ccmnent any further. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: I am asking you whether you asked Mr. 

Snedeker to resign? 

MR. STEVENS: One JtOre time-
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, we are badgering now. I 

mean--
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I am not badgering; I am asking a 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, Mr. H~rman has just been 

put on this Carmittee today. He has never served on it before, aoo our 

Corrrnittee meetings have usually gone very placidly. This is, I find, a 

real departure fran the way we have conducted o,ur business; it is a 

badgering of a witness who just answered the question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: If I may, I would indicate to Mr. 

Schuber, Mr. Herman may have been appointed to this Coomittee today; 

however, Mr. Herman has served as the Chairman of the Law, Public 

Safety -- actually, it was the Judiciary Law, Public Safety, and 

Defense Ccmnittee for, I believe it was two terms? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Three terms; this is my eighth year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: And, Mr. Herman was also a - one of 

the sponsors on the noving of the legislation which created the 

implementation of the photo driver's license. Mr. Herman has sponsored 

and sent out of committee a report, I believe in April of 1980 or '81, 

which indicated - at that time when there was a .Democratic Governor, 

as you well know - that the process of Motor Vehicle agents, and the 

selecting of Motor Vehicle agents was too politicized, and we should 

depoliticize it. 

I believe, in all probability, Mr. Herman, in relation to 

this topic, probably has nore of a substantive background concerning 

the legislation that is involved here today than with the probably 

each of us sitting here. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, let me ask- Let me tell 
you sanething--

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: However, I don't want to get into any 

argue ••••• Mr. Herman, I would ask you to oontinue on another line of 

questioning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN .SO:CHINI: Do you have a question? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I have a statement. I spoke to Mr. 

Herman prior to the meeting, and I'd asked why he was here today, and 
he explained his background on the thing, and I 've read sane of his 

mem::>s, and I have oo problem with that, and I didn't raise an objection 
to that •. That is. oot the purpose of my objection. I have oo problem 

with Mr. Herman's expertise that can enlighten the Ccmnittee. 
What I am objecting to--

ASSEMBLYMAN BCCCHINI: ( intei:-rupting} Your previous 

objections--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: ( continuing) \tllat I am objecting to, 
Mr. Bocchini--

ASSEMBLYMAN l:3(XCHINI: (interrupting and continuing with 
ccmnent) -Mr. Schuber, was well taken--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: (continuing with interrupted objection) 
-is the inquisitional nature of the questioning and a badgering of a 

witness. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: (continuing with, and finishing 

ccmnent) -and I have asked Mr. Herman to continue in another line of 
questioning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let :rte just sey for myself...;.­

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, what you are doing here 

is badgering. What's happening here is a witness-
ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: Mr. Schuber, you are out of order. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: (interrupting) I am not out of­

ASSEMBLYMAN 1:0:CHINI: (continuing) I want to continue with 

this meeting or you may leave the meeting. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Bocchini-- Mr. Chairman, I am an 

original member of this Carmittee. 
ASSEMBLYMAN 1:0:CHINI: I am the Chair, and I understand 

that. I have asked Mr. Herman to continue on another line of 
questioning. 

Now, Mr. Herman, if you will please continue. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I will do that, and I would like to just 

say for the record, I don't believe I raised my voice and I don't 
believe that I badgered the witness·. All I aske-- I asked him a very 
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simple question which he chose twice not to answer, but that-- You can 

constitute that as badgering. He has one opinion of what is public 
information and I have another. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: It was four times, Mr. Herman, and he 
answered the question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I guess we count differently. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BX:CHINI: In the future, a:t this ix>int - I was 

trying to allow everyone to address their questions without having to 

go through the Chair, but it is becaning apparent that, by necessity, I 

am going to have to request that statements cane through the Chair if 
this line of just outburst continues. 

I will try to continue to allow you to speak as pauses and 
the proper time appears to be forward for you, but if I see any nore 

outbreaks, such as this, all questions will be directed through the 
Chair. 

At this time, Mr.· Herman, will you please continue? I don't 
want to waste time on this type of dialogue, Mr. Schuber. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate that you are 
the Canmittee Chairman and I will abide by your wishes, but, just 

remember, I am an original member of this Canmittee. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And I respect you also, and you are 

aware of that fact. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: well, I think I have the full right to 

ask as many questions that I wish to also. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I . agree, and you will be given equal 

and ample op:[X)rtunity to do so. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I didn't know that substitutes had any 

less rights than- I thought a legislator duly assigned was a 
legislator duly assigned, but notwithstanding that--

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Please, Mr. Herman, · let's continue 
with any question you may have of Mr. Stevens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN S::X:CHINI: we have five other people I would like 

to hear fran this rrorning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I understand that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Mr. Stevens, are you really-· 
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ASSEMBLYMAN B::>CCHINI: (interrupting) I 'rn sorry, Mr. 

Martil'l""'.- • 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: ( interrupting) That's-- Let him go; I 

lost my flCM, Joe. 
ASSEMBLYMAN B::>CCHINI: All right. Go oh, Mr. Martin. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: There was a pause and I was trying to 
follCM your--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You go ahead, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Mr. Stevens, are you really in a 

position to be able to speak as to what the Governor's position is with 
respect to resignations? You were asked, as I understood it, by 

Assemblyman Herman, to be able to explain the Governor's position with 
respect to receiving resignations. Are you in that position as Chief 

of Staff? 
MR. STEVENS: . I'm not sure I understand the question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Well, the questiol'l""'.- The question is 

related to Mr. Herman's last one, which is whether you felt, and feel, 

that you are in the position to be able to understand to the point of 
explaining to third parties, being us, the Governor's position with 

respect to taking and receiving resignations, sudl. as the one that was 
taken fran Mr. Snedeker. 

MR. STEVENS: As I indicated, the Governor's position is that 
these are matters that are between himself and the individual that, in 

this case, has submitted a resignation. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Did he delay, in any respect, in 

accepting the resignation when it was offered by Mr. Snedeker? 
MR. STEVENS: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCX:CHINI: Well nCM, since you've opened that 
fact up and he did not delay, Mr. Herman, if you wish to continue your 

questioning in the lines of who requested it, then L think it is a fair 
question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You see, I 'rn not ask- If you don't 
want to answer what the Governor's feelings are, that's okay. That is 

your right to do that. We can all draw our CMn conclusions. But, I am 
asking you a very quiet, direct question: I am asking you, sir, did 
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you request, at any time prior to Mr. Snedeker' s resignation, did you 

request Mr. Snedeker to resign? 

MR. STEVENS: That's the question you've asked me three 

times, and I have given you the same answer. And, I am going to give 

you the same answer again, okay? It is a private matter between the 

Governor and the fonrer Director of Motor Vehicles, and out of respect 

for both of them, I am not going to CXJIID:nt any further •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: But it wasn't a private matter that he 

didn't hesitate to accept the resignation, is that correct? That was 

your response to the question fran Mr.-

MR. STEVENS: (interrupting) I am aware of the fact that he 

did not- What was the eoo of your question? I'm sorry. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: That he did not hesitate to accept the 

· resignation of Mr. Snedeker. There was no way. You are aware of that 

fact. 

MR. STEVENS: I am aware of the fact that this resignation 

was sutmitted. I don't remember what day. And, I am aware of the fact 

that it was accepted the same day, and I would say, in response to his 

. question, that's not - it doesn't take -- that's not a very long 

period of time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Through you, Mr. Chairman. You see, 

that's what bothers me, Greg. That's what bothers me a great deal. · 

The fact is, that what you said to Mr. Snedeker -- you as one public 

official, duly appointed aoo paid for with the taxpayers' m:::>ney, just 

as I am -- what you said to Mr. Snedeker, another public official, duly 

appointed and paid for with taxpayers' m:::>ney, is n<M private, out of 

respect to the Governor. I don't understand that. I don't understand 

it. I have no-

MR. STEVENS: (interrupting) I'm sorry if you don't 

understand it. I think I have made my position clear. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Actually, if I may, Mr. Stevens, did 

you- The bottan Hne is, did you - I am not asking about the 

Governor; I am not asking about the Attorney General; I am not asking 

about Mr. Snedeker; I am asking you: Did you or did you not ask for 

Cliff Snedeker's resignation? 
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MR. STEVENS: I believe that's the same question Assemblyman 

Henrian has now asked five times. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B.X:CHINI: If you have no resix>nse, you have no 

resix>nse. 

MR. STEVENS: I have a resfX)nse. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: All I need is a yes or a no. 

MR. STEVENS: It is the same response I've stated, I guess 

now five or six times. would you like me to repeat it again? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chainnan, he answered th~ '!be 

witness answered the question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: May I ask· him a different · question, 

along the same lines? It is indicated, in some press reix>rts · that I 

read, that you said the press people-- You did not ask Cliff Snedeker 

to resign. Is it true that you told press people that you did not ask 

Cliff Snedeker to resign? 

MR. STEVENS: I don't have any recollection of discussing 

with the press the situation regarding Mr. Snedeker's resignation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI: Let me change the line of questioning 

for a m:xnent. In your meeting, when you said you discussed the 

legalities, did you discuss the terms of the contract, or what. the 

contract was going to be? 

MR. STEVENS: Not really, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI: Not really? That gives me an 

indication that there was some substantive discussion, but not 

necessarily at length. 

MR. STEVENS: Once again, I provided the Camnittee with a 
copy of · the memorandurn, which is the basis of the meeting on March 

11. If you take the time to read that memorandunr-

ASSEMBLYMAN B:>CCHINI: ( interrupting) I have read that 

several times, and I am trying to ascertain fran you--

MR. STEVENS: (continuing) -which we provided to the public 

and the press last week, you.would find out that there was contained in 

that memorandum a broad outline of what the terms of the arrangement 

between Sears, Taggart, and the Division of Motor Vehicles was going to 
be. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN B)CO:IINI: I understand that. But, my question to 

you is, you said, "Not really," well, as ther~- was there any 

discussion as to the fees? 

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chainnan? 

ASSEMBLYMAN B)CO:IINI: Yes, sir? 

MR. STEVENS: I indicated at the outset of this hearing what 

went on at that hearing to the best of my - at •that meeting, to the 

best of my recollection; and, that is, in fact, what went on. 

I, frankly, do not recall personally discussing fees and the 

amount of fees, and those sorts of things. I do recall finding out 

that apparently the Division of Motor Vehicles had a difficult time 

convincing Taggart International to be involved in this program because 

· of the marginal -- the marginal aspect of this program, in terms of a 

profit. It was vecy unclear - is vecy unclear - as to whether or not 

there· would have been a profit to anyone involved at this time. 

. ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Fran whan did you obtain that 
information, fran Mr. Snedeker? 

MR. STEVENS: I obtained that infonnation in that menorandurn 

and in a discussion at that ~ting on March 11 • 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCO:IINI: In light of the fact-

MR. STEVENS: (interrupting) In fact, I think it was 

described to me as marginal at best, in terms of the question of any 

kind of profit for Taggart International or Sears. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I'm sorry. Who indicated that that 

would be marginal at best? 

MR. STEVENS: I can't recall specifically, but I suspect it 

was either the Attorney General or the Director of Motor Vehicles. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCO:IINI: Was that at the March 11 ~ting? 

MR. STEVENS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: So, at that time sareone within the 

confines of that meeting indicated th·at Taggart' s is reluctant and that 

their profit would be marginal at best. 

MR. STEVENS: That's my recollection; that's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Fine. There was no· recollection- Is 

there any recollection as to what fees would be chargeable by Mr. 

Taggart? 
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MR. STEVENS: I think I just answered that question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXHINI: Well, no, see--

MR. STEVENS: I didn't get into the specifics of hOw much was 

going to be charged per license aoo so forth. What I was told - or, 

what I was .informed -- was that this was- And, this is, in fact, one 

of the · reasons that the Di vision was so interested in pursuing . this 

program with Mr. Taggart was because he was · one of the few people, 

apparently, who . was in a p:>5ition to provide this service in an · 

econanical, efficient, and timely fashion for the New Jersey public. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOXHINI: Considering that the Governor 
indicated, in his press release on April 11, that, nThe withholding of 

information concerning Mr. Tagget' s selection as a· licensed agent is, 

however, inexcusable. Such action runs directly contrary to the stated 

policy of this Administration, a policy which requires candor,·honesty, 

forthrightness in matters dealing with public issues and public :noney. 

The failure of the Depa~trrent of Law and Public Safety and the Division 

of Motor Vehicles to disclose Mr. Taggart' s selection represents a 

serious error in judgrrent and cannot be condoned." 

Taking that, which was prepared, evidently, through Mr. 

Golden's office, would you seem to think that, in addition to Mr. 

Snedeker, that yourself, Mr. Kirnrrelman, and others attending that 

meeting are painted with the same brush? 

MR. STEVENS: I certainly agree with the Governor. It was a 

terrible, stupid public information mistake. But, that was the only 

thing that occurred. There's been no shred of evidence of any 

wrongdoing. There has been no shred of evidence of anyone makin;; any 
profit here, and so forth. This whole thing, obviously, is a public 

relations problem; I think you understand that, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Who, if-- Do you have any-- Do you 

know who negotiated with Sears? 

MR. srEVENS: Excuse m?? 

ASSEMBLYMAN :SCX::CHINI: Do you know who negotiated with Sears, 

directly with Sears? 

MR. STEVENS: I don't know personally, but my understanding 

is that both the Director -- the then Director of Motor Vehicles, and/ 

the now Acting Director were involved in those negotiations. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN B::>CCHINI: was there any tacit approval required 

to - in relation to that negotiation with Sears? 
MR. STEVENS: Tacit approval l::1y whan? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: By your office. 

MR. STEVENS: No. As I indicated to you at the outset, this 

was brought to us on March 11 , and as it is described in that 
nenorandt.m1. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Based upon the infonnation that you had 

in these meetings, there was never any understanding that Taggart' s 

role in this would be able to be kept undisclosed fran the public for 
any great length of time, was there? 

MR. STEVENS: Absolutely not. And, again, if I had known at 
that time that Taggart' s name was going to be ani tted fran the 

. announcement that ensued a day or so later, I certainly wouldn't have 
tolerated it because it is a direct conflict with the stated philosophy 

of this Administration, which Chainnan Bocchini just outlined a rcaient 
ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN I~IN: Fran your experience in relation to -
with the government, Taggart's name would not have been able to be kept 

permanently undisclosed fran the public, would it, in any way? 

Martin? 

MR. STEVENS: Absolutely not, and it shouldn't have been. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: · Is there anything else, Assemblyman 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B::>CCHINI: Assemblyman Herman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Just before you leave, I don't want to 
ask you another question, but I want to let you know why I have been 

asking you these questions. I imagine all of us have been reading fran 
time to time the various news releases, and on April 23, 1985, the 

article in The Star-Ledger, by Mike Diserschia, indicates - this is a 
question to Mr. Golden- It asked if anyone in the Kean Administration 

ordered Snedeker to resign or be fired over the escalating controversy 
surrounding the awarding of the contract to Taggart. Golden said "no." 

Then you have this - these press canroonts fran, I believe it was one 
of the Trenton papers, which indicated through reliaole sources that 

you asked him to resign. 
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Now, really, the reason I ask these questions is because I 

think -- maybe it is just my parochial view -- but I think that the 

public is entitled to Jmow the truth. Was he asked to resign, or 

wasn't he asked to resign? Is Mr. Golden correct when he said that 

nobcx1y asked him to · resign, or · Js that Trenton paper correct, which 

said that.you asked him to resign? You will have to admit, at least on 

the· face of it, that does seem to be a contradiction. 

MR. STEVENS:.· Is that a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yes. ~lildn't you say those two public 

statements are a contradiction? · · 

MR. STEVENS: Do you rely on reliable sources as your Iiethod 

of infonnation? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: · ~uld you say that the two public .. 

reports are contradictory? we have one Republic· report caning out of 

the Administration which says that you asked him to resign, ana·we have 

another public report caning out in another paper £ran. the Press 
· Secretary saying nobody asked him to resign. 

NOW, none qf. us have to go to college to figure out that 
•' ' 

there's a difference, that they're like night and day, North and South 

Pole, and maybe that is why I aIIl asking you these questions because I 

think we are entitled to know the truth once and for all. Do you have 

a response to that as to whethe;t:' I aIIl 'entitled to JmCM the truth? 

MR. STEVENS: I have a r~sponse, and that is .that out of 

respect for the former Director and • the Governor, I ciII not going to 

oament any further. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Thank you. so, I can assume that to say 
' ' 

that out of respect to the Governor and the former Director, :t aIIl not 

entitled as a public .. official, duly elected to serve in this 

Legislature, to know the truth. That's what you're telling ne. 

MR. STEVENS: You're implying that sooehow I aIIl not giving 

you the truth. You are relying on one newspaper article. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You're not giving ne anything, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN s:>cCHINI: Are there any other questions? . (no 

response) Mr. Stevens, thank you •. would you mind staying arouoo just 

in the event that we have any other questions as a result of other 

witnesses who will be here? 
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MR •. STEVENS: How long will that be? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: Well, if yoo are going to go back to-­

Will you be in your office? 

MR. STEVENS: Yes, for about an hour. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: That will be sufficient, but if you 

are going to leave, if you could just stop back in and let us know, 

just in the event we have sane questions. One of the basic purposes of 

this -- very candidly, Mr. Stevens - is the ability to have all of the 

people who were involved in the release and in the giving of direction, 

so we. can get to the bOttan line. Hopefully, when the bOttan line 

canes out, it will be sanething to the extent that there was a large 

mix-up. At this juncture, I am far fran being satisfied to see that 

there was just fX)Or judgment. HCMever, maybe that will be proven to be 

the case. I appreciate the fact that yoo were here. 

I request a five-minute break, please. · 

(RECE.$) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX;CHINI: All right. Mr.--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: we have to wait for· oor colleagues. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Are Bill Schuber and Assemblyman Martin 

outside? (no response) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX;CHINI: All right, gentleman, if we may 

continue. our next witness is Attorney General Irwin I. Kimmelman. 

Attorney General Kinmelman, thank yoo for being gracious enoogh to 

return to this rather lively Canmittee ~eting today. 

Since our ~eting last week, General Kimmelman, have yoo had 

an opportunity to ponder where we are heading in relation to this 

A-3610 as far as the delay is concerned? Do yoo believe that it is 

·sufficient that we simply delay, and delay it at the age of 21? I know 

yoo indicated that yoo would seek sane information fran Colonel Pagano, 

and it may be a little premature at this juncture as far as your being 

able to obtain it. But, I am curious to know as to whether or not 

there are any personal thoughts on your side at this juncture. 

31 



ATIDRNEY GENERAL IBWIN I. KIMMELMAN: Not since last Thursday, 

Assemblyman. '!he Colonel and I have not spoken about this. I really 

wouldn't want to venture any position until I do confer with my 

professional expert. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: In relation to the discussions 

concerning Mr. Taggart as an agent, are you familiar with under which 

existing laws his agency cane abalt? I know there was a discussion of 

his being a limited agent. I have been unable to track down 

statutorily how a limited agency is formed. 

MR. KIMMEINAN: '!he statute doesn't classify agents as 

1 imi ted or full service. An agent is nothing nore than the narce 

implies -- an agent who transacts business as his principal directs. 

In this case, the principal would be the Director of the Division of 

M:>tor Vehicles. My understanding was that the agent under discussion 

would limit his activities to the issue of photo license renewals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: '!he problem I had is under 39: 3-3, 

registration of licensing agents or designated · as being appointed one 

in each county for each 300 inhabitants or a fraction thereof. I was 

curious as to how Taggart's, or whatever concessionaire we would care 

up with, w::>uld be able to fall within the framework of that particular 

legislation without our having to arcend the law. I have a copy of that 

if you would like to see it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (to unidentified person) Excuse me, 

Sir. Can you reach over and hand this to the Attorney General, 
please? (Attorney General reads statute) 

I think the question is, Mr. Attorney General, the statute 

appears to be written that the agents should perform all services -

with a "shall" in there. I was just wondering whether that question of 

interpretation has ever risen before as to whether or not you could 

have a limited agency. 

MR. KIMMEINAN: '!hat question hasn't . arisen before, to my 

kna'lledge, and it was the understanding of the Director of the Division 

of Motor Vehicles for sane time that the Division had the authority to 

direct what services the agents appointed by the Division would 

perfo:rm, and in this particular instance, it was not a so-called "full 
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service" agent, but rather one whose services would be limited to one 

specific operation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: ,It is fair to say that in the past the 

agents who had been app::>inted -were all full-service agencies, right? 

MR. KIMMEIJttAN: I don't kncM that for a fact. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I am trying to stretdl my mind and go 

back here about 12 years - not a heck of a long time -- but I'm just 

wondering whether anybody's recollection-- Can you recall any agent 

ever been appointed who wasn't a full-service agent? 

MR. KIMMEu-iAN: I don't know that. My understanding was that 

- fran my contact personally with the agents -- was that there -were 

age'nts who could handle both registration and licensing. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Because the statute does seem to lay out 

it shall be that they shall do the following. 

MR. KIMMEIJttAN: well, it's subject to interpretation as I am 
just reading it, Assemblyman Herman. "Director shall designate a 

person to be his agent for the registering of m:>tor vehicles, issuing 

registration certificates and licensing of drivers subject to· the 

requirements of this subtitle and to any rules and regulations the 

Director imposes." Now-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) I am just wondering 

whether there are any .rules or regulations. We do have a rule and 

regulation, and I think that is 39:3-lO(g), if you can-- Just for the 

purpose of the process, -we are just wondering whether it would be your 

opinion, sir, whether this should be an area of legislative inquiry 

that should be clarified. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: I think it could be an area of legislative 

inquiry. When you say "clarified," that means that the existing 

statute or rule or regulation is not clear. I believe that by rules 

and regulations the intent of the authority given to the Director can 

be made clear. '!he Director is given certain authority here. He has 

discretion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: But, would it be fair to say on its 

face, without getting into a whole bantering about the subject, that 

you read the statute per se, and it would appear that the legislative 
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policy would be in one direction and the regulation, if there is a 
regulation, would be in another? 

MR. KtMMEI.J.1AN: well, we oould say that if we wanted to split 

hairs, but you have a statute whidlvests discretion in the Director to 

issue rules and regulations. So that, apart fran the broad legislative 
enactnent, the Director is empowered to fill in the muscle and the 

flesh, so to speak. 

ASSEMBLY.MAN HERMAN: Let me- You knCM I am not a big fan of 

regulations, but notwithstanding that, in this particular instance -­

getting back to this contract, this Taggart contract -- do you knCM of 

any set of regulations, were you advised· of any set of regulations 
irnplerrented in acoordance with that statute, whidl would have approved 

the issuance of the o:>ntract? 
MR. KIMMEI.J.1AN: we didn't -- or at least I didn't, or my 

personal staff did not make any research into that area. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: ( interrupting) You would agree- Oh, 

I'm sorry; go ahead, sir. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: No, it was assumed that the Director did have 

the discretion to determine what his agents would do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: . But, it would be fair to Sa::/ that as a 

general principle of law and government, that you can't perform 
governmental acts, sey the issuance of a contract, unless you have the 

appropriate statutory or regulatory authority to do so? 
MR. KIMMEI.J.1AN: That's a correct proposition. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, · it would also be fair to say then· 
that if there was no statutory or regulatory m:chanism in place prior 

to the issuance of the Taggart oontract, that the Taggart oontract, on 
its face, would have been an improper one. 

MR. KIMMEI.J.1AN: well , I don' t knCM if I would go that far. 

If the law is silent, then the question arises whether the Director has 

it witpin his discretionary p::Mer. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN S:X::CHINI: Attorney General, did you have the 
opportunity to see the rough draft? 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: Never saw the rough draft. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN S:X:CHINI: The reason why I ask that is because 

under the first "Whereas" paragraph of the agreement, it says: 

"Whereas the Division desires to designate the agent pursuant. to 

N.J.S.A. 39:3-3 of the statute we are nc:M diso.issing to be its agent at 

large at photo driver license centers located at various retail sites 

owned by Sears, Inc. within the State for the issuance of photo 

drivers' licenses subject to the requirements of Title 39," and it goes 

on and says, "and to any regulations, instructions, and perfonnance 

standards the Division of r-t:>tor Vehicles may impose." 

If one assumes - and it is a logical assumption - that if 

the statute refers to regulations, was there in effect a regulation at 

the time of the drafting of this agreement? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: To provide for a limited agency? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Yes. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I don't believe so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARl'IN: Mr. Chairman, if I may. 

understand that this licensing would be for renewals only? 

MR. KIMMEu-tAN: Yes. 

Didn't you 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARl'IN: And if that is . the case, doesn't it by 

its very nature take the form of sane type of a limited agency, since 

it doesn't have the right to authorize new licenses? 

MR. KIMMEu-tAN: Well, yes, but the question is whether the 

statute authorizes a limited agency, less than. full service, so to 

speak. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Mr. Attorney General, if I--

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: (interrupting) Excuse me. Just by 

way of clarification, I was under the impression that the Taggart 

situation would have allc:Med him to issue even an original first photo 

driver's license. Any renewal would still be an original first photo 

driver's license caning out off an existing license. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARl'IN: I was referring to the fact- '!hat's 

why I asked the first question as to whether the renewals, or whatever 

this· statute was, not the original one as far as driving - other 

licensing agencies, whether this one, in fact, could cover the full 

panoply which was given to other agencies. 
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MR. KIMMEI&N: Well, this one couldn't, the way I understand 

it. I haven't seen the draft. That was being handled by members of my 

staff. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So the statute, by its very nature, 

limits to a certain degree the authority of this particular agent, 

Taggart fran Sears, to issue licenses? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: 

understand your question. 

I'm afraid, Assemblyman, that I don't 

ASSEMBLYMAN B::>CCHINI: Mr. Pelly? 

ASSF.MBLYMAN PELLY: Mr. Attorney General, one question. You 

say that you are not aware of the agreement, or the proposed 

agreement. Do you have any kno.dedge as to who prepared the agreement? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: No, I don't. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN PELLY: was it soneone in your office? 

MR. KIMMEI1-1AN: I don't know that either, but I do believe 

that one of our staff Deptuty Attorneys General was acting in this 

regard. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Who ordinarily prepares agreements of 

this nature? 

MR. KIMMEI.W\N: It would be the Deputy assigned to the 

Division of Motor Vehicles. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: (interrupting} So, I would- If I--

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: (continuing} And it may be that a draft 

agreement was gotten up by virtue of discussions between him and Mr. 

Taggart's attorney. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: (interrupting) So then--

MR. KIMMELMAN: (continuing} But, I have no personal 

kno.dedge of that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN.PELLY: Okay. If I wanted to pursue the issue of 

the agreement, I would not be looking toward the Division of Motor 

Vehicles1 I would be looking in the Attorney General's off ice for 

information with respect to that. 

MR. KIMMEI&N: As to the drafting? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Yes. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Yes. 
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ASSEMPLYMAN PELLY: 'As to the agreement and the text Of the 

agreement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Who drafted that agreement for you, Mr. 

Attorney General?· Do you know? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: That is what I'~­
MR. KIMMEIMAN: This was my-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) I am just interested in 

the name of the person who drafted it. 

MR. KIMMEI.l-1AN: I don't·know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay. While we' re· waiting, can I-

Mr. Olairman, with your pennission,.may I ask--

ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI: (interrupting) Excuse me. Mr. 

Kline? (Mr. Kline starts to speak fran audiencei not near microphone.) 

Will you step·up here, please? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 

there, sir? 

Mr. Attorney General, won't you sit 

RJ3ERr. s. KLINE: Mr. Olairman, what was done was that we used the 

standard agreement that was used with all Motor·vehicle agents~· It was 

developed about three years ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: His answer was ..;_ · for louder - "They 

used the standard agreement that was used by all Motor Vehicles. 11 

continue fran there. 

MR. KLINE: Right. That was. developed about three years ago 

between the Division and the Department of Law and Public Safety. A 

Deputy Attorney General -- I don't knCM which one - three years ago, 

reviewed it for us, but it was approved as to form. This was revised 

within the Division based upon the limited nature of the arrangement 
with Mr. Taggart, and then reviewed by the Attorney General's off ice, 

specifically . Deputy Attorney General John Bender. And, after making 
· m:x3ifications, the draft was sent . to Mr. Taggart, which was never 

signed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: When was this oontract drafted, Mr. 

Kline? 
MR. KLINE: I really would have tc;:> check that. I really 

would have to check that. I don't know.· 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Could you please obtain that 

information for the Carmittee aoo advise us? 

MR. KLINE: I will do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Maybe while we are talking to the 

Attorney General you can make that telephone call for us. 

MR. KLINE: Okay, sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 'lhrough you, Mr. Chairman, if I may 

proceed with scma of the questions I had on the law. Mr.- General, 

we had - I passed up to you a regulation -- a rule and regulation -

which I assume is part of the enabling regulation as far as 39:3 is 

concerned. In that regulation it ~uld indicate that in reference to 

the - and I'll read.the paragraphs just for everyone listening here so 

they will all kn™ what we are· talking about. It says, "The fee for 

such photographs shall be fixed by the Director based up:>n the actual 

costs incurred by the Division of Motor Vehicles and the implementation 

and administration of this act, but shall not exceed" -- with 

underscoring that - "but shall not exceed $1.50 for each license or 

renewal thereof and shall be in addition to the fee presently 

authorized for the issuance of a driver's license pursuant to R.S. 

39:3-10." 

I assume you · kn™ what my question is going to be; I don't 

think it will be any big surprise. If the statute says not to exceed 

$1.50, where do we cxxne off charging people $2.20? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And $1.80. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: An.d $1.80. 

MR~ KIMMEIMAN: The statute -· the regulation speaks about-

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: (interrupting) It's a statute as 

well, I believe. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yes, that's a statute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: A statute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I beg your pardon, it is a statute. In 

other ~rds, there is a statutory fee that says yoo can't go past a 

buck fifty. '!be Legislature wrote it; whether we are right or whether 

we are wrong, we nevertheless wrote it. '!be Governor signed it; it's 

law. H™ do you exceed it? 
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MR. KIMMEI.MAN: That's a question, the answer to which was 

determined by the Division of Motor Vehicles. I am not aware of this 

particular provision at the time of the proposal. I was-.:. 

believe anyone on our attorney staff was aware of the actual 

be paid to the sears' agent, as q>posed to another agent. 

subsequently I learned that other agents who process photo 
I 

I don't 

price to 

I mean,_ 

licenses 

receive a fee of $1.80, which is mre than the $1.50. And Sears, for 

processing it with their concessionaire would receive $2.20. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let rre ask you this, sir. Obviously­

Are you telling rre that this is the first that tine you are aware -

basically by my handing you up this _document -- that the fee was a 

maximum of $1.50? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: No, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: When did you becane aware of that, sir? 

MR. 'KIMMEI.MAN: This is not the first time. we became aware 

of it when we learned that the Division of Motor Vehicles had· 

negotiated a fee of $2.20 with respect to the Sears processing, and 

$1.80-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) When was that, sir, for 

a tine reference, if we may? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Oh, I would say it was-- we learned that 

sanetirre after_ April 11 • That is my tine reference. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let rre ask you this, sir. As the head 

of the- · Am I interrupting? Go ahead for a mcxnent; I'll wait. (Mr. 

Kimnelman confers with members of his staff) 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: This is First Assistant Attorney General Mike 

Cole. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I know him well. I call him •Recount 

Cole." 

MiaiAEI, R. <XLE: Assemblyman, I don't read 39:3-10(9) the same way you 

apparently do. This sets a maximum fee that can be charged to the 

public. The $2.20, however, is a fee, a payment to the Motor Vehicle 

agent. so, in effect, there is a State subsidy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I understand exactly, and I_ was going 

to that. I just want to clarify the record. Mr. Cole, you and I can 
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read it both ways, and I'd like to discuss it because that is a matter 

of serious legislative policy. I had sonething to do with this 

statute; that's why I am sitting here_. I would like to discuss it with 

the Attorney General -as a matter · of policy, as we are implenenting 

where we're going. 

we have $1.50 in the statute. We will agree that we can't 

ch~e the public nore than $1 ~so. 
MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Correct. 

· ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: -Let's stop ·there for a nanent~ I also 
- - -

understand that the public has been ·charged fran some Motor Vehicle 

agencies $1.80. Right? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: We don't know that. 

MR. OOLE: I don't think that's so. -

ASSEMBLYMAN BOXHINI: If I may, Mr. Herman. In our last 

neetirig on--- Do you have that in the notes there? There was a direct 

reference __ with the ·- Attorney General concerning the. implenentatioo of 

fees, at which time he called Mr. Kline to assist him. But, if I might 
read to yo~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) Mr. Kline is caning to -

the rescue again. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B:)CCHINI: I indicated, if I may, Mr. Kline, on 

questioning: "Please, I would like somebody to- I am just trying to 

find out some answers to some things, and not necessarily all fran you, 

- because sane people coming after you will probably have sane caments," 

and we were discussing the fees. Attorney General Kimmelman, you 

indicated: "All right, all - right. I' ;u indicate- All right, 

Assemblyman, I know what I read in the papers, as you do. I think the 

non-Sears Roebuck agent is paid $1.80." That was in conferring with­

You turned to confinn with Director Kline. 

And then we went on to indicate that it was $2.20, whim was 

the agreement in relation to the Sears' · contract and · this_ was in 

relation to the processing of the licensing for the photo license. 

MR. KIMMEI."1AN: Yes, but I understood the question to be that 

in sane instances the public may be-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) _ '!'hat's the question, 

sir. 
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MR. f{IMMELMAN: (continuing} ••• charged m::>re than $1 • 50. I 

don't.knCM that; perhaps Acting Director Kline can help us. 

MR. KLINE: If I could answer, Mr. Chairman. The public is 

charged $17.50, which includes the $1.50. The public is not charged 

m::>re than the $1 • 50. What the Attorney General was referring to is the 

ccmnission structure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: We understand, and that's exactly what I 

wanted to _pursue. With due respect to the Chainnan, I understand· 

that, and I think the public is· entitled to clarify this particular 

issue. So, it is fair to say that.in the $1.80 situation, the State is 

picking up 30 cents of the tariff - whatever 30 cents canes to~ 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, that's taxpayers' m::>ney. That's a 

p:>licy decision you have made; whether we agree with it or not, that is 

sanething we have to look into. Okay? Are all Motor Vehicle agents 

paid the $1.80, other than the Sears' contract? 

MR. KLINE: It varies. The ccmnission schedule for Motor 

Vehicle agents, depending upon the· voluma of transactions, goes fran -

these are oonsidered double items, so it goes fran 90 cents down to 40. 

cents. So, depending up:>n where the individual agent's volUl'IE of 

transactions is at that particular time, it could be as high as $1.80 

that they are paid to process a photo license; to as little as 80 

cents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, without ma unduly taking of the 

Committee's time, what I would ask- I would like to see, and I assume 

other members of the Carmittee would like to see fran you, Mr. Kline, 

is a list of that pay schedule, and hCM many photo licenses have been 

done, hCM much of the oosts we have eaten, so that.we can make a policy 

judgment. 
,. 

If I could pursue just for a rooment this particular oontract, 

I assume that under this oontract it was a given, since it was a State 

oontract, that there would be, in essence, a-· my math is - a 70-cent 

bite, $2.20 minus $1.50, and hCM many-- Approximately a half a million 

were going to be issued? 

MR. KIMMELMAN:_ We don't knCM hCM many would be issued. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, it was anticipated. I mean, there 
was sane projection made. (Mr. Hernan confers with the Chairnan) 

According to the background, how much was it? 
ASSEMBLYMAN 80:CHINI: The Division anticipates that-

~EMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) Approximately 50%? 
So, that's $2.7 - $2.6 million eventually it would be, and the State 

would pick up 70 cents of $2.6 million, r guess, if my math. is dcay. 
That's certainly in the area of a million bucks. 

MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: You're using a speculative figure, and we 

don't know how many notorists would go to the-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) Sir, this canes right 

fran your Department: Analysis, Department of Law and Public Safety, 

April, 1985, given to the Joint Appropriations Committee. If I am 

speculating, I'm speculating with your own Department's docunent. 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: Excuse me, that's your document; it's not 

mine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay, I beg your pardon. I'm speculating 

· with my docunent then. Legislative Services, my apologies. That 

information was given to them fran the Department of Motor Vehicles. 
Well, whosever information it is, I'm speculating with sanelx>dy' s 
information that's supposed -- and I would hope that if it was Mr. 

Kline's information, or Fiscal Affairs' information, at least sanebody 

that this Legislature has a right to rely on, it tells us there may be 
a million dollar bite ,at that 70-cent number. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: Or better. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Or better. Am I going too fast with the 

math -- 5.2 million, 2.6of those would go there, 70 cents times 2.6. 

renewals. 

time. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Do you mean in a year's period, or total? 

~EMBLYMAN HERMAN: Total. 
MR. KIMMELMAN: Well, let's just assume--

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: (interrupting) Out of 2.6 million 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Let's just assume that 500,000--
ASSEMBLYMAN 80:CHINI: ( interrupting) He did this the last 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Assune -- I don't know, I'm speculating. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: That's 350,000. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: '!hat's 350 a year; correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay. So, in other words, we are going 

to be underwriting Taggart and Sears, or whoever, to the tune of 

$350,000 a year. Let the Attorney General answer for himself, please. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Based ufX>n those speculative figures, which 

have nothing to do with the expenses-

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) Okay. 

MR. KIMMEI..MAN:. No, but you have to understand one thing. 

You can't exclude the fact that with respect to the regular agents, the 

State picks up a substantial share of their expenses. It pays for the 

rent and the utilities. You have to add that in, too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: It's a fX)int of discussion. I' 11 cede 

for a few morrents; I believe sare other people have sare questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Rent and utilities, under the Taggart 
contract, I believe, were being picked up by Sears. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Picked up by-- Yes. 
MR. KLINE: Picked up by Taggart­

MR. KIMMEI..MAN: By Taggart through­

MR. KLINE: To Sears. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OC>CCHINI: Through the 15% rent. Now, going back 

to 39:3-lO(g), if you read on after the $1.50, it says, "exceed $1.50 

for each license or renewal thereof and shall be in addition to the fee 

presently authorized for the issuance of a driver's license pursuant to 

39:3-10. 
MR •. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Now, if you can, General Kimrelman, 

what is the basic fee for the issuance of a license? 

MR. KIMMEI..MAN: Eight dollars for two years; $16.00 for four, 
plus $1.50, and you get to the $17.50 that is charged the m:>torist. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: "It shall be in addition to the fee 

presently authorized." 

MR. KIMMEI..MAN: Right. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHINI: So, the m:>torist under this situation 

would pay an additional $1.50? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I have some others, if I may, if I can 

stick on the topic of the hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I wish we \\Ould. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I'll try to help you. I hoo an 

c:pportunity to review your testimony before and there are sane things I 

\\Ould like to dlat with yoo about concerning the varioos statutes. I 

think you had indica~ed before-~ and I looked up the oolloquy back and 

forth - that you made reference to the :E,X>int in your· ~ning remarks 

aoout, I believe it was Director Waddington at that particular time, 

wanted to go to 50 full-tin¥:! public agents, and that the Assent>ly 

Canmi ttee on the Judiciary and Public Safety at that time disagreed -­

rejected it. I was \\Ondering if yeu knew why, for the public reoord. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: I don' t kncM why. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, I think for the pur:E,X>Se of 

the dialogue, maybe we' 11 tell you. At that particular time, we did a 

nonpartisan - nonpartisan - re:E_X>rt of both Republicans and Derrocrats; 

I believe it was an unanimous re:E,X>rt at that time, in which it was 

suggested that before the Departnent of Motor Vehicles went to pick on 

sanebody else, picked up sane nore agents, that they first clean up 

their own act. The Director and the Attorney General at that 

particular time agreed that before they \\Ould look to see what else 

ought to be done, there ought to be an introspective look •. And, there 

was an introspective look, and then you made reference to that: "In 

1981, a re:E,X>rt was rendered by a Motor Vehicle task force." That was 

the genesis of that task force report; it was stimulated out of those 

ccmnittee hearings, saying: "LOok unto thyself before you lock to 

~xpand the branches of public government further." I just thought that 

you ought to know that. 

I . don't know whether you were aware. at the time that you 

testified in the beginning of May that we also -- this Legislature, 

this Judiciary, Law, Public Safety, and Defense Coomittee -- at that 

particular time, hoo issued a rather extensive report ooncerning the 

need for public bidding. I don' t kno.v if you have ever seen this 

before, General, so I will show it to you. (Assemblyman Herman hands 

report to Mr. Kimmelman) I think it's April 11, 1980 or 1981; I 

forget what it says. 
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MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes. 

ASSE'.MBLYMAN HERMAN: Have you seen that, sir? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I read the 1981 Study Coomission Report. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You've never seen my report? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I never saw your report. 

ASSE'.MBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, I would like, if you would- I 

don't know if that is an extra copy, but we would like to ~furnish you 

a copy of it because you will note in that, sir - I felt sanewhat 
I 

slighted - that when your q:>ening cooments were made, sir, to the 

Carmittee last time, you seemed to indicate that - you know, it was 

sort of by indirection -- that we didn't have an alternative, and I 

wish to point out to you that I believe that is where the Kalik 

legislation -- the genesis of the Kalik legislation came fran. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Assemblyman Herman, when I testified last 

week and indicated that I believed it was time to depoliticize the 

selection of agents by the Division of Motor Vehicles, I didn't say 

that that was an original idea. It has been talked about for sane 

time, and I see your Ccmnittee very clearly recarmended that the 

appointment of agents be depoliticized. My testimony was that I 

believed Assemblywoman Kalik's bill was a positive step in the right 

direction. 

ASSE'.MBLYMAN HERMAN: I want to tell you why the bill also got 

sidetracked. If you knCM-- I believe the then Director Wisniewski was 

leaning in the direction of going with the bill as proposed by 

Assemblywoman Kalik at that particular time. We did have an historical 

event; I won't call it an intrusion. Every four years we have election 

for Governor, and I believe just about that time we had a new Governor, 

and, lo and behold, she didn't have a job arr:/ longer. So, there was a 

new Motor Vehicle Director and a new Attorney General, and you know the 

way the process goes; you sort of start all over. And that was the 

genesis of where we have been and where we are. 

MR. KIMME!l-1AN: Well, that is not exactly correct. we didn't 

start all over. The Division of Motor Vehicles took the 1981 Task 

Force Report which contained many suggestions for improvement in the 

agency relationship, and implemented rcost, if not all, of those 
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suggestions in the relationship· which the agents r£M have with· the 

Division of Motor Vehicles and that was incoqx:>rated in the contractual 

undertaking. I believe before. 1981, the appointment was not evidenced 

by a contract, whereas nCM it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN · HERMAN: I grant you that there have been many 

improvements as a result of that. I think maybe you are skipping 

around the point I was trying to make - and maybe it's a self-serving 

one -- that as of 1981 or 1982, I think that this process was ready to 

take the next leap and to talk about canpetitive bidding, which was not 

taken. I think that if it weren't for this event, I think that this 

subject would really not be getting the attention that it really, truly 
deserves. 

MR. KIMMEI&N: That's so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, if there is good . to . care out of 

bad, you know, perhaps that will be it. May I ask. you, sir, since the 

last time you appeared here, not having the benefit of that earlier 

report, whether you or your staff have given any further in-depth 

thought to what you would like to see in a canpetitive bidding statute? 

MR. KIMMEI&N: we are studying it; we are prepared to assist 

the Legislature with our views. we believe that consideration should 

be given not just to public bidding with respect to .each of the 50 

agents, but perhaps consideration given to one overall operation or 

operations conducted on a regional basis, rather than having a public 
bidding 50 times for each specific agent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I appreciate those conmen ts. Mr. 

Attorney General, earlier Mr. Stevens testified tl)at at the ireetiD;J of 

March 11 he was assured personally by you, sir, that everything 

involving the Motor Vehicle contract .with Taggart was absolutely 

legal. He said, "given the strong opinion." I believe that was his 

term. 

MR. KIMMEI&N: That was his term. We indicated or I 

indicated at the time - that there was no problem with the legalities 

of this arrangement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And that was based on staff research? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes. 
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· ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: There's been sane coornent bandied around 
- I don't knCYN whether it is just scuttlebutt or. whatever - that 

there is a memo floating about your Deparbnent which says that the 
contract may not be ethical. Is there any truth to that scuttlebutt? 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: No truth. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: I am just asking because I- I am not 

raising it to raise ghosts. It's ccmnents that sane of us have heard, 

and I feel if we can't ask you, I don't kno;., who else we are goir¥J to 

ask. 
MR. KIMMEIMAN: '!'here is no such meno. 

ASSEMBLYMAN El)CCHINI: Are you finished, Marty? 
ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: Yes, go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :SO:CHINI: In relation to the .. drafting of that 
contract, were you able to ascertain at this juncture-

MR. KLINE: {interrupting) They're getting it. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCXCHINI: They're getting it? All right. Do 

you knoo who represented Taggart in relation to the drafting of the 
contract? 

MR. KLINE: Mr. Taggart was represented by Ralph DelDeo, a 

member of a Newark firm, Crurrmy, DelDeo. ', 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Bob, could you keep your voice up. sane 

folks are going to have trouble hearing you. 

MR. KLINE: Okay; I'm sorry. He was represented by Ralph 

DelDeo of a Newark law firm, Crurrmy, DelDeo, I think it's Dolan and 

Purcell. 
MR. KIMMELMAN: And Griffinger. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :oclCCHINI: At the time of your meeting on the 
eleventh, subsequent to the issuing of the meno on the sixth­

Your meeting, I believe, has been referred to by Mr. Smith and Mr. 

Stevens. It was attended by yourself, General Ki.mrcelman; I believe you 

also, Mr. Kline; Mr. Snedeker; Mr. Stevens; and, Mr. McGlynn. was the 
contract discussed at that meeting, Mr. Attorney General? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Not that I recall. I don't believe there was 
a contract in existence. 

ASSEMBLYMAN El)CCHINI: But, you indicate--
MR. KIMMELMAN: If it was, it wasn't discussed. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: All right, but Mr. Stevens indicated 

at that point that everything in relation to the transaction was legal. 

MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: I advised him that the arrangement being 
- undertaken was legal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Before you proceed on that, may I just 

ask a question? You indicated that there was no contract in existence 

as of the March 11 meeting. Do we kn™? Is that correct? Mr. Kline 
indicates that that is correct. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: May I either ask you, sir, or Mr. Kline, 

when was Mr. Taggart officially appointed as a Motor Vehicle agent? 

MR. KLINE: As of March 13, the date of the announcerrent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, he was appointed as of March 13. 

MR. KLINE: The contract evolved subsequent to the 

appointment, and if I could clarify that-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) Go ahead. 

MR. KLINE: (continuing) ••• if I could clarify that for you, 

Assemblyman- As you are probably aware, since you have been studying 

this issue for a number of years, prior to this Administration cx:ning 
into office, there was never a contract between Motor Vehicle agents 

and the Division of Motor Vehicles. That was instituted three years 

ago. It is not required by statute, or regulation, or any other rule. 

This is sanething that we had developed because of the unique nature of 

the Sears' photo license centers. This is something that ha:i to be 

developed, and took longer than maybe the normal contract, which 
applied to all agents. So, as a result the date of ap:r;:ointment, the 

oontract was not finished. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: was this prepared in March? was this 

prepared? Do you kn™ if this first draft was prepared in March? 

MR. KLINE: Well, the original is on file. we used the 

original--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) can we kn™ that? 

MR. KLINE: I am trying to get that information. Maybe if 
you would let rre go to a phone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Could you? Would you please go to a 
phone and get that? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: The basic indication, however, is that 
this is simply a boiler plate contract with-

MR. KLINE: ( interrupting) Boiler plate, with changes, 
because we had two nndifications essentially. One is the cxmnission to 

be paid as opposed to a cxmnission schedule, and the second is that all 
that would be issued by the agent was photo licenses. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OCCCHINI: However, Mr. Taggart was named an 
agent on the thirteenth. 

MR. KLINE: '!bat is correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN B.X:CHINI: Officially? 

MR. KLINE: Pursuant to statute. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI: Right. As Driver's License Service, 

Inc., is that correct? 
MR. KLINE: '!bat is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: How could that have been done when­

If he were named on the thirteenth, the filing of the incorporation for 

Driver's License Service, Inc. did not take place until April 1. 

MR. KLINE: Well, being an attorney, Assemblyman, I rcean, we 

can't always provide that these papers are filed on time. We knew the 

name of the corporation; we knew that Mr. Taggart' s attorney would be 

filing the papers. They were app::>inted as agent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARl'IN: Had any parties ever- Did any of the 
parties ever sign this contract? 

MR. KLINE: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Is it fair to say, Mr. Attorney General, 
that the State, under your offices, would review the contract after­

Well, let me ask you this: ~uld the State be the final party to 
execute the contract? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Yes. The contract \IOuld have been reviewed 

by our legal staff prior to its execution, and the approval of the 

contract and the legality of its provisions would have been so 
indicated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: So, just so I understand the timing 
then, the State would be the last party to sign the contract, which 

would then make it enforceable and fully executed, and up until that 
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time, it· would still be · the obligation and responsibility of your . 

Department to review the contract, and it would be only until the State 

signed the contract tha.t your r~view process as far as its legalities 

with res:pect to any ethical considerations or any other problens 

related to that oontract would be finalized. 

MR. KIMMEU!AN: That's a fair statement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: .. Let ma ask Mr. Kline or Mr. Kinmelman­

It is my understanding fran what I have just heard that, in fact, prior 

to these last · three years . there . have not been oontracts between the 
State and its Motor Vehicle agents. 

MR. KLINE: You are absolutely oorrect, Assemblyman. There 

was never any formal agreement. If you go back, you can see in 

. Division files just. a short letter of appointment, and that was it. 

There was no other understanding between the agents and the Division of 

ftt:>tor Vehicles.· 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: \tlat are the recamendations-- . 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: . ( interrupting) I believe that's 
ccmnendable on your part, Mr. Kline. 

MR. KLINE: Thank you •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN . BOCCHINI: And the Division's, that they 
. I 

instituted oontracts. It is unfortunate that that wasn't done sooner. 

so,. that is to your cred.i t, and if . we can oontinue in relation 

oontract, .. Mr. Schuber. 

to this 

ASSEMBLYMAN· SCHUBER: I still had the floor, Mr. Chairman. 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BXOIINI: I understand that • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: The question I had asked you then is 
.. 

that as a result of this-· Then the next foll0t1-up question was that 

then •· you or Mr. Snedeker, in your tenure there, developed contracts 

between the State and the agents. Is that oorrect? 

MR. KLINE: That is c:x>rrect. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER.: And that as a result of the preparation 

of these oontracts then, you were working off a form of contract with 

regard to the Taggart matter. 

MR. KLINE: '!bat is absolutely oorrect. I have those dates, 

Mr. Chairman, that you requested. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I'm sorry. Mr. Kline, you know, a few 

of the things that were said here strictly oother me. Let me tell you, 

if I may. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI :. 

information on the oontract? 
(interrupting) Do yoo have the 

MR. KLINE: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: What is it? 
MR. KLINE: The information? Okay. The original agreement 

- the standard agreement - was drafted in approximately August, 

1982. The agreenent dealing with Driver's License service, Inc. was 

m:>dified-

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: (interrupting) The original draft. 

MR. KLINE: (continuing} ••• April 1 , is what I have on this 
note. April 11-

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: (interrupting} 
MR. KLINE: The original draft, 4/1. 

awroved 4/16/85. 

The original draft? 
Modified and finally 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let me tell yoo a few things that oother 

· me about this, okay? There is a press release - without getting into 

the wherewithals of the press release - just talking about the 

appointing process. There is a press release, which if done properly, 

according to everybody who has testified, should have included. Mr. 

Taggart as the designated official. But really, Mr. Taggart was only a 

principal of a corporation to be formed, I assl.llte fran what is going on 
here. Because, as I understand the law- You know, sanetimes there 
are all types of persons. There are corp:>rate persons, there are 

partnerships, and there are individual persons, and sanetimes we in 
goverment or in private .business, we make a contract with either a 

partnership, an individual, or a corporate person, a corporate entity. 
Now, when Taggart was app:>inted in the beginning of March, 

Taggart was appointed. '!he public was never advised that this was 

going to go to a corporation. In fact, if the things were done kosher 

and properly, I . think we "'10uld all agree that it should have been 
announced that it was going to a corporation, whatever that corporation 

was going to be, and who were the principals of that oorporation. But, 
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it was never announced, so we made an appointment, in fact, an inproper 
appoin:tmen:t in March, even though we didn't even · disclose that one, 

because . actually the appointment was going to a oorporation to be 

formed •. Arn I oorrect? 

MR. KLINE: May l respond? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Sure. 

MR. KLINE: Okay. '!be appointment was made, Mr. Herman, to. 
·· Driver's License Service, Inc. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: When? . 

· MR. KLINE: On March · 13. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: . Stop there just for a nanent, and tell 
me sanething, Mr. Kline. You have two attorneys, two very able 

.attorneys--

MR. KLINE: · (interrupting) Three attorneys. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 'lbree attorneys? You are not appearing 

··here·. as an attorney, I'm. sorry. But, I' 11 sey we have three able· 

· attorneys. That perhaps makes ·my next question a little nore difficult 

for me to understand. Would you tell me, sir, ha., you can make an 

appointment to a nonexistent oorporation? 

MR. KLINE: Well, at the time,I didn't make the appointment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: well, who made-- How anybody could? 

MR. KLINE: Okay. The appointment was made on the basis of 

the fact, sir, that we knew these papers were going to _be filed and. 

that we were in the process of working with Sears and Mr. Taggart to 

develop this. And, the agency was announced March 13, and the agent's 

appointment letter went out March n. I understand the point you're 

making. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Arn. I correct? 

MR. KLINE: You are oorrect. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Didn't you appoint a nonexistent person? 

MR. KLINE: You are oorrect in that Driver's License Service, 

Inc. - the papers were not filed ·an:3 were not in existence at that 

time. Ha.,ever, I think that based upon all the work that was being 

done at that time with Sears Roebuck, it was sanething that_ was done. 

It was done with no intent to deceive or to, you kna-1, not reveal 

sanething to the public. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You appointed a nonexistent person. You 

made an. appointment to a nonentity. 

MR. KLINE: Mr. Taggart was · very real at the time, and I 

understand the technical legal argument you're making. However­

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: ( interrupting} You' re an attorney. You 

prepare corporations. Do you go out and you sign contracts for 

corporations that don't exist? 

MR. KLINE: You knc:M, Mr. Herman, I did not get involved with 

the filing of those papers. At the time, all the Division knew, Mr. 

Herman, was that Driver's License Service, Inc. was to be the name of 

the agent. Yo1J.,'re right. Subsequent to that it was filed. I am not 

responsible for filing those papers on behalf of the agent and, as a 

result, I was under the impression that that was done, and I'm sure 

that the Director, at that time, was under that impression. NCM, 

subsequent to that, it was done. 
-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Isn't it important- I rrean, let's talk 

about doing business. Forget this case. The appointment of any agent, 

I rrean, isn't it a part of the operations of Motor Vehicle that you 

knc:M who you appoint and, if it is a corporation, you make sure that 

they are in existence before you appoint them. Is that sooething 

outrageous for a legislator to ask? 

MR. KLINE: Do you want me to address that again? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yeah, you can. 

MR. KLINE: All right. Driver's License service, Inc. was 

the appointed agent. It was our understanding that that was the 

corporation when the papers were filed. It is nc:M of record that it 

was after the fact. It is not, I think -- maybe you disagree with rre 
-- the Director of Motor Vehicles' or Deputy Director of Motor 

Vehicles' job to check on incorporations. 

Our job was to make sure that we could implement, 

conveniently, the photo license law, and that's what we were attenpting 

to do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 

corporation? 

Even if it is to a nonexistent 
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MR. KLINE: The corporation is now existent, Mr. Herman. I 

think. that, you know, the notives you are trying to attribute are not 

there. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BO:CHINI: Mr. Kline, or . Attorney General 

Kinmelman, in relation to the ~eting of the Attorney General on the 

11th, with - I'm sorry· - Mr. Pelly did have a question, and I 

apologize, Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: That is all right. I have a question of 

Mr. Kline with respect to the agreement prepared on April 4, and 

nodified on April 16. One provision in the agreement is - states -

that the agent is qualified by training and experience to perform the 

required services in the manner and terms and conditions set forth. 

If, in fact, this agreement was prepared on April 16, finally, and the 

incorporation filed on April 1, what are the standards for rendering 

this agent qualified by training and experience to perform these 

services? Can you describe these standards that you have in the 

Department that would make him qualified during this short period of 

time? 

MR. KLINE: All right. Well, Assemblyman, it wasn't a short 

period of time. The Division has been working on this project, and 

I' 11 refer to the photo licensing project, for approximately a year. 

we first went to the AAA, looking to them as a statewide basis, to 

distribute rotor vehicle licenses. we negotiated with them. 

Unfortunately, AAA could not get the interest of all its members, and 

it was critical to us that we had a statewide program. We couldn't 

just have one office here, and one office there. 

Subsequent to that, and I believe it was sanetime in the 

early fall or late sl.lITlln:r of last year, our Assistant Director, who is 

in charge of this program -- of agency program -- contacted Sears, and 

after n~rous calls, and after n~rous in;iuiries, finally a ~ting 

was established. 

What we were looking for was a ~chanism to provide 

individuals with the photo licenses as conveniently, as effortly, as 

possible, and we thought that whether it was a AAA or a Sears, their 

locations, their accessibility by the public to them would be the best 

way to do this. 
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Subsequent to the involvement with Sears, it was learned they 

do business by concession. No one at the Division, aoo nnst of the 

public are probably - they are not aware of that. With that 

knowledge, we were told who their concessionaires·were. It was felt at 

that time by the Division and Sears, after many discussions, the best 

concessionaire -- approved concessionaire -- of Sears to deliver a 

statewide net\>K>rk of photo license centers at Sears stores \>K>uld be the 

Taggart Corporation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: When did that occur? 

MR. KLINE: All this occurred--

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: No, the identification of Taggart as 

being the qualified person to do this job. 

MR. KLINE: Sanetirne in late November. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Late November of last year. Go ahead. 

So, you're suggesting that in late November of 1984, Taggart was 

identified as the person to do the photo I.D. \>K>rk. 

MR. KLINE: By l:x>th Sears and DMV. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN PELLY: By Sears aoo OMV. 

MR. KLINE: Because without Sears' approval, Mr. Taggart, or 

anyone else, would not be allowed to do this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Isn't it true you didn't look beyond 

Mr. Taggart-

MR. KLINE: That is not--

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: --once Sears was contacted, aoo it was 

ascertained that Taggart was a concessionaire of sane type, that there 

was no effort to iTGuire beyond Taggart's? 

MR. KLINE: Well, we looked before, Assemblyman, as I 

mentioned. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: No, but I'm talking in relation to 

Sears. 

MR. KLINE: Well, no, that is not quite correct because there 

was another concessionaire who approached Sears, met with Sears, and 

did not get the concession. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Who was that? 
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MR. KLINE: That was a tobacco concession that they have. 

The-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 

there too? 

Do they have a "No Siroking" section 

MR. KLINE: I'm sure the Assemblyman would have frowned on 

that anyhow, so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: May I ask­

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Joe, I'm not finished. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I'm sorry. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:::cHINI: Mr. Pelly, please? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: I want to continue, Mr. Kline. So, in 

November of 1984, Taggart was identified as the person who was best 

qualified to do the job. At that point in time, is it reasonable to 

assl.Dle that Taggart then entered into an education program- sooe kind 

of program which qualified them in accordance with this proposed 

agreement - by training and experience to perform this? 

MR. KLINE: No, obviously not, Assemblyman. With all our 

agents, once they are appointed, they go through an extensive training 

program on how to process · the documents, and also how to use the 

COfllPUter equipmant. we don't do it before the fact. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Oh, so March 13-

MR. KLINE: What we dealt with was a business decision on the 

part of Sears and on the part of the Division as to what was the best 

medlanisrn to deliver this program, and it was a joint decision, not a 

unilateral decision, that Taggart would be the concessionaire approved 

by Sears to do this. If, in fact, we wanted Taggart on our own and 

Sears did not approve, which was not the case, Taggart would not have 

the concession. we went to Sears first. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: I understand that. 

MR. KLINE: We didn't go to Taggart first. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: When was Taggart supposed to have begun 

operations at the Sears stores? 

MR. KLINE: We were talking about the target date originally 

of in late May, June. Again, that was all influx ~ue to the nature of 

laying out the store and everything else. I believe in the March 6 

meroc>, Director Snedeker referred to a May 1 deadline. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Has any work been done at · any of the 
; 

Sears stores to provide for the photo I.D. work? 

MR. KLINE: 'lllere was sane work being done, yes. I 

personally, and Director Snedeker, Assistant Director Torlini, met on 

the norning, I believe -- and, I have to refresh my recollection - I 

believe it was March 13 - March 13 - at the Quakerbridge Mall to look 

at a layout of the Sears store, with the manager of that store, several 
Sears executives. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: How many stores have begun preparation? 
How many Sears stores have now, to date, begun? Do you know? 

· MR. KLINE: Well, they were beginning preparation on about 18 

stores, laying data lines - things of that nature. And, that has all 
been aborted, obviously. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: How often are Motor Vehicle agents paid 

for their services? 

MR. KLINE: That I would have to check, as far as- I think 

it is a nonthly - a rronthly - check, but it may be evecy two weeks; 

probably evecy two weeks like the other State employees, but I would 
have to get that information.· 

ASSF..MBLYMAN PELLY: Okay, I would appreciate that. 

MR. KLINE: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Mr. Chairman? Mr. Atto~ey General, 

there was sane testirrony - again, I would like to get back to the 

March 11 meeting -- in which, at least Mr. Stevens characterized it as 

a strong opinion fran you that it was legal. Mr. Snedeker was also at 

that particular meeting. Is that correct? 
MR. KIMMEI1-1AN: Yes. I don't-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, you are his boss and the chief 
legal officer of this State. 

MR. KIMMEI1-1AN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 

says, right? 

MR. KIMMEI1-1AN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 

Well, that is what the Constitution 

would it be fair to say that Mr. 

Snedeker had a right to rely on your <:pinion? 

57 



MR. KIMMELMAN: Yes. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: ~en did you cane to change your 

opinion, if you did change your opinion, that the contract was an 

improper one? 

MR. KIMMEI.lt1AN: well, our advice expressed at this date -

the March 11 reeting ...,.. was that there was no impediment to doing 

business with Mr. Taggart. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: WOUld yoo characterize Mr. Stevens' 

cxmtents as "too strong" as being strong? 

MR. KIMMEil-1AN: Well, I don't want to characterize what he 

said, but there was a question put to me, and I said there was no legal 

objection to doing business with Mr. Taggart. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: well, I assume that Mr. Sned- I want 
to know, when did you change your mind, sir. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Well, now I'm getting to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: All right. Go ahead. Excuse me, I can't 

hear the Attorney General. Go ahead, sir. 

MR. KIMMEil-1AN: In April, I can't give you the exact date, 

but it may have been around the 22nd of April, my First Assistant, Mike 

Cole, called me - I wasn't in Trenton on that day - and indicated to 

me that there was a prO\Tision in a Code of Conduct for ~tor Vehicle 

agents, which suggested that a Motor Vehicle agent should not at the 

same time be involved with a driving school. And, the First Assistant 

and I discussed it legally, and we came to the conclusion that, in view 

of this provision of the Code of Conduct, which no one really dug out 

prior to that particular time and brought it to the attention of Mr. 

Snedeker or Assistant Director - Deputy Director Kline - or the First 

Assistant Attorney General, but it was now brought to our attention. 

We felt that the best course ~uld be not to enter into oontractual 
relations with Mr. Taggart, and that was the advice given. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, shortly after that, Mr. Snedeker 

resigned. Is that correct? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes. 

ASSE'.MBLYMAN HERMAN: And, would you - do you agree with 

Mr. Snedeker's resignation? 
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MR. KIMMEIMAN: Oh, I 'WOUldn't. want you to ask me that 

question. 
I 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: well, I'm asking you. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I don't think what my opinioo of the 

resignation is--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: well, do you think his resignatioo was 

warranted under the cirC1.D11Stances? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: well, let's put it this way. Let's put it 

this way. I dealt with Cliff Snedeker for ewer three years as Divisioo 

of - as Director of the Division, as the Deparbnent head. I respected 

the man. He, in my view, was a knowledgeable and dedicated public 

servant. I had no problem with him. I am satisfied that he is of the 

highest of integrity. . And, I believe - stronger than that - I'm·· 

sorry that his resignatioo cane about. 

ASSEMBLYMAN J;IeRMAN: Let me tell you why I asked you, because 
. . 

- · and, maybe we share sane of the sane views - because, if Mr. 

Snedeker resigned because of the ensuing · COde of Conduct, and Mr. 

Snedeker went ahead and authorized the contract because he was given 

legal opinion or opinions, including yours, sir, · that it was cxay, 
which. the opinion was then switched, I think we got the. wrc>r¥J fellow. 

Because, if Mr. Snedeker resigned because of legal opinioos that you 

and other folks gave him, then I see Mr. · Snedeker as the scapegoat, and 

maybe it ought to be sanebody else .• 

· MR. KIMMELMAN: Well, look, let's get one thing straight. 

He's not a scapegoat for the Department of Law and Public Safety1 he's 

not a scapegoat for the Attorney General. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Then why. did he resign? 

MR. KIMMEI.lt1AN: I don't know why he resigned, but I indicated 

that a staffer at the Division of Motor Vehicles did not do his or her 

hanework, and did not properly advise the Director of the Divisioo of 

Motor Vehicles of the existence of this COde of Conduct. And, whether 

or not that_rotivated Mr. Snedeker, you would have to ask him. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JnXHINI: Mr. General Kinmelman, when did you 

becane aware of the Division Code of Ethics? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: It's not a Code of Ethics; it's a COde of 

Conduct, I believe. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Or, Code of Conduct. 

MR. KI~IMAN: I think that is the wey is characterized. On 

April 22, about that date. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Have you reviewed that? 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: With my First Assistant Attorney General, 

Mr. Cole, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOXHINI: You have reviewed that? Do you have a 

oopy of that available? I requested that, I believe, at the last 

hearing. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: we don't have it with us. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: If I might, is this - and, I don't 

quite understand -- this is a true story, folks- Sooebody attached 

this - I have the original with me, the envelq:>e that it cane in - to 

the back of my law office door on Friday. And, it said, "Mr. Bocchini, 

please read inmediately." I rea:i it, and I'm looking for SCJie guidance 

with it. Maybe you can help me. Is that part of it, Mr. Cole? 

MR. a>LE: I don't believe I've seen this document, 

Assernbl yman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Do we have copies of that, Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: we don't knOtl what it is, Mr. 

Chainnan, so we can't identify it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: If you can help me decipher this, it 

will be greatly appreciated. This is exactly the form it came in. My 

law partner asked me if we were involved in "I Spy." Is there any way 

of ascertaining if any of this information that was given to me -- if 

that is valid today, or if it is valid information? 

MR. a>LE: This appears to be a job description for State 

employees, and it would apply, insofar as it refers to the Code of 

Ethics, to State employees. Motor Vehicle agents are not State 

employees1 they are not covered by the Departmental Code of Ethics, or 

indeed, the Division Code of Ethics, which are restricted to 

employees. 
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The Code that people have been referring is included within 

the manual, which contains performance standards and other standards 

for Motor Vehicle agents, and is, in effect, a contractually imposed 

Code of Conduct on those who are not State employees. 

MR. KLINE: This is what you were referring to, Mr. 

Chainnan. This is the Code of conduct never officially ~opted by this 

Division, by the way, and you can check with the State Ccmnission oo 

Ethical Standards. Matter of fact, I an told, bade in 1981, the 

previous Administration, when they were doing the Zazzali Report, they 

checked on that, and they were advised at that time that they were not 

officially adopted. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: So, this has no legal standing. 

MR. KLINE: '!hat is correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: It is not recognized within the 

Division of Motor Vehicles or, for that matter, by the Department of 
Law and Public Safety. 

MR. COLE: I think it's- By this, we are referring to-­

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: CUstan. 

MR. COLE: -the Code of Conduct for Motor Vehicle agents. I 

think it has - it is binding as a matter of contract between the 

Division and the agents. It is standards of performance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, it is incorporated as a matter of 

government policy if it is incorporated in the contract. 

MR. COLE: That is right. The contracts will refer, I 

believe, to the manual that is supplied to Motor Vehicle--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, nevertheless, it is a policy in 

effect once you sign it. 

MR. COLE: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, it is the standard policy that all 
agents sign it? 

MR. COLE: It is within the manual that is given to each 

agent, which they are bound to follow. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: It is like - it's like -- it's like 

plans and specs, again, when you are drawing a building contract. You 

incorporate them by reference, I assume. 
MR. COLE: That is correct. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, what is incorporated by reference 

is 'part: of the contract; so, therefore, it would be fair to Sa:f that 

· this particular document is part of the standard agent's contract and 

obligation. 

· MR. COLE: I think I would say that the contract refers to 

the manual, and this is part of the manual. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Oka:t. so, the answer would be yes. 

· MR. CX>LE: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Oka:j. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: But, I an trying to detelllline the 

reason· for voiding. the contract. · According to ·.news ·accounts,· that 

•after learning of the Code of Ethics violation, Attorney General Irwin 

I. Ki.Jmelman ordered Snedeker to rescind the draft agreement for the 

photo driver's license ooncession that · had been given to William 

Taggart." Is that correct? 

MR. KIMMEUIIAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN s:x:cHINI: But, there is no Cooe of Ethics. It's 

inoorporated within the Division's manual? 

MR. KLINE: · It. is a Cooe of Conduct. There is no violation 

of the State Code of Ethics. It is a violation of an internal Code of 

Ethics, if you want to say that there was a violation. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: The contr:act- You know, we are all 

lawyers, right? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: so, we voided a contract with a 

nonexisting corporation. 
' .MR. KIMMEI&N: The corporation was filed April 1, I just 

heard. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: A contract is a contract is a contract, 

and if . it is . a contract, it's part of their - it was part of the 

obligation to be, and it had been a standard of practice in all the 

oontracts, right? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: But, a contract hadn't been entered at that 

point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: we are talking about all of the other 

contracts, sir. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: .And, then, 'WOUld it be fair to say, if I 

heard the test:im:>ny, that _ this was, "the standard contract that was 

used?" 

MR. KIMMfillo1AN: As IIDdified. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: As IIDdified. SO, 'WOUld it be fair to 

assume that that also applied to this contract? 

MR. KIMMEilt1AN: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I don't assume that it was any attenpt 

to delete it. 

MR. KIMME:Ui1AN: No~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: so, would it be fair to say that the 

State policy with its Motor Vehicle agents was that this prevailed ~ 

that this was the order of the day? 

MR. KIMMEU1AN: Yes. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: '!bank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN _ BJCCHINI: Attorney General, do you have any 

reason to believe that we actually needed the additional outlets?_ Is 

it-- were you certain beyond a reasonable doubt that~ Strike that 

because "beyond a reasonable doubt" - that does not even cate close to 

applying here. 

But, the implenentation of the 21 sites with Sears, were they 

absolutely necessary? 

MR. KIMMEu-mN: It was reported to ne t7j my Division 

Director, Mr. Snedeker, that the photo licensing oould not be done 

according to a predetennined schedule, unless there was sate expansic;,n 

of the licensing outlets, and I relied upon what be told ne. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCOIINI: Was there anything ever--

MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: It was his decision to determine whether that 
was necessary • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BOCOIINI: was it ever taken into consideration 

· the fact that with the selection of Sears, that it was limiting 

yourself to nostly suburban areas for the expansion of the 

implenentation of the photo licenses? 

MR. KIMMEU1AN: '!bat you "WDuld have to discuss with Director 

Snedeker. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN OC>COUNI : Mr. Herman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:, Yes. . Can I get back to the March 11 

neeting? Could you explain· to me, sir, your understanding of the 

genesis of that meeting? How did that meeting care to be? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I only know what I hear. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, you were there, so I assune that 

you knew. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Well, you're asking me for the genesis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Oh, I beg your pardon, yes, the 
genesis •. I beg your pardon, sir, yes. 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: I heard that there was a meeting scheduled, 

and I spoke with Director Snedeker on the irorning of the 11th, and the 

result was that he felt I should join the meeting. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, you didn't- I know you to be a 

person that doesn't let the tail wag the dog, and I say that 

respectfully. I would assume that you asked, "Who set up this neeting, 

and why do I have to be there?" 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: No, I asked who set up the neeting, but I 

didn't ask, "Why do I have to be there?" 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:. And, what was the response to who set up 

the meeting? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Director Snedeker told me he set the neeting 

up with the Chief of Staff. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let me ask you this, if I may: Have 

there ever been, · to your knowledge, during your tenure as Attorney 
General, any other sudl meetings in the Governor's office, reference to 

the appointment of Motor Vehicle contracts? 

knowledge. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Not to my knc,,,,ledge. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, this was the first. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I can't say that. I said not to my 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, none that you participated in. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: None. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And, to your knowledge, any member of 

your staff ever participated in any such meetings? 

MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: Not to my knowledge. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, it would be fair to say that to the 
best of your knowledge, this was the first meeting that you or any 

other member of the Attorney General's staff ever participated in a 
Motor Vehicle meeting of this kind. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMJ.\N HERMAN: The reason I ask that is because I had 

occasion to review sane of your testim:>ny before the Joint 
Appropriations canmittee, and I believe you made an observation 

ooncerning contracts such as this as being "business as normal." 
MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: Well, I don't know. I think that is probably 

taken out of oontext. What I was referring to is appointments of 
agents. That is normal, and that is, it goes on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Is it normal-- I'll ask this, because I 

don't know how it is in this Administration, and it certainly goes to 

the issue of what we are doing with the legislation. Are M:>tor Vehicle 

app::,intees -- generically, Motor Vehicle app::,intees - approved by you, 

sir, before they are appointed? 
MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So--

MR. KIMMEIMAN: The Director advises me what he has done -­

what he is doing. They are not approved by me, and they are not-- The 
app::,intments are not made by me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Do you have the veto -- do you veto any? 
MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: No, I don' t have veto power. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay. So, the p::,int is, it--
MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: -under the statute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, he advises you of what is going on. 
MR. KIMMEI.1-1AN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, the p::,int of - on, "This is 
business as normal," would you say that in the context that this 

particular meeting was business as normal? 

as normal. 

MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: I couldn't dlaracterize it that way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You wouldn't characterize it as business 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: I wouldn't dlaracterize it that way. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: How would you characterize it? 
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MR. KIMMELMAN: I wouldn't dlaracterize the neeting. I am 

aware that the neeting was··arranged by the Director because the 

utilization of larg~sca1e outlets· for the processing of photo 

liceQSing.had not been dorie before and, in that sense, it was a first, 

so · that I believe·· - and Director·· Sne<:ieker can speak for himself - I 

believe that's what was in his mind when the .meeting was arranged. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BERMAN: You testified before this Cannittee 

about a week - about a · week ago, and I read that testinDny 

thoroughly. You did make- You did volunteer sane inform~.tion which 

made a headline or two, but, in your testinDny, you never indicated 

before this Carmittee.;;... unless I misread it -- that there ever was a 

March 11 meeting involving this ap!X)intnent. And, I wonder, sir, why? 

MR. KIMMEL.MAN: was I asked? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:. well, m:>st of the questions - nost of 

the questions weren't questions. '!here was a general discussion. I'm 

just asking you why. You were here to disclose what occurred and, by 

the way--

MR. KIMMEll1AN: No.,, you're characterizing what I was there 

for. I was there to answer questions, and I did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I read the te- I believe that you had 

an opening statement, and I believe that you liberally expressed your 

!X)ints of view as to what occurred, so I assume that the reason you 

didn.'t volunteer the information was - you were not asked. 

MR. KIMMEL.MAN: No, my purpose in that meeting was to disaiss 

whether the photo licensing bill should be -- or, photo licensing law 

- should · be delayed, and also the view concerning Assemblywanan 

Kalik's bill. '!hat was my p.irpose in attending that neeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You will agree that the questioning and 

the answers got nuch broader than that~ I assume? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Oh, they did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: I'm just wondering why you didn't 

volunteer at that time, since you volunteered that there was a menD of 

March 6, that there was A meeting on March 11. It was just a question 
of curiosity on my part. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, I think we are going far 

afield again here, AND I hate-
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ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: 

If we may stay with the-­

I will. 

-March 11 meeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, if I might, please, too, 

I 'rn a little bit concerned here about one other thing. Mr. Martin and 

I are Carmittee m:mt>ers of this, and we did not get a copy of this 

transcript of the hearing, and I was not aware that the Attorney 

General was going to be here again today. I thought we had finished 

with his testimony, and I think it would have been fair -- because I 

knON you asked for an expedited transcript at the end of the hearing -

and, it would have been only fair that we be at least notified that the 

Attorney General was caning back, and that we be given copies of the 

transcript to review as Mr. Herman was. It was only fair to us as 

members that- It's a canplete surprise tone. I knew Mr. Stevens was 

going to be here because of the paper, but I didn't knON that the 

Attorney General was going to be here. I still have yet to see the 

transcript. 

norning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You can see my copy, which I got this 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Herman's got a transcript of-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: well, I apologize to you, Mr. Schubeq 

hONever, we had our staff people irquire about this. I 'rn sure your 

staff people could have also inquired about the transcript. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, that is unfair. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: I certainly don It nean it to be a 

slight to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: well, It is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXlUNI: 'Ihe fact is that are-- I am 

apologizing to you. we are here, and we are in the midst of the 

neeting. You knON, the transcripts were not given to ne. I did not 

receive my copy of this transcript until very late yesterday, and that 

still is a substantial tine difference fran when we are discussing it 

here today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: we still didn't get it. We're sitting 

here, and we don't have it yet. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCx:CHINI: Would soneone kindly see--
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And, the Attorney General is a witness 

that evidently was put on the list, which we weren't notified so we 

could prepare for it. I think that is unfair to us. It really is. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCCCHINI: There was a press advisory put out 

ooncerning this, and your office, I believe, received a oopy of that. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN SCHUBER: But, am I supposed to read about our 

Conmittee rosiness in the paper? .I mean, I should be notified. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: We get sate . of our best infonnation in 

the paper. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. SCHUBER: I' 11 stick to the remarks that I made · 

at the beginning of the meeting, Mr. Chainnan, because it ~ars that 

sare of us are trying. You know, at least we' re not- You know, we 

are · all trying to participate in sane way, shape, or form in this 

thing, and it is not helpful if we don't get all the information that 

is made available 'to other members. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: That is absolutely right. You would 

agree, Mr. Attorney General, and I'm going back just to the overall 

ooncept of the schene dealing with Motor Vehicle agents - whether it 

is a special oontract, a limited contract, or a general contract -­

that the public has a right to know who the State is paying the noney 

to. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Can you tell me, sir, in that regard -

and, I know you knew that at the time this release was prepared, and I 

believe in your earlier testim::>ny - I believe you approved the 

release, did you not? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: It went out under my narre and Director 

Snedeker's name, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I believe in your testim::>ny, you 

suggested that if it weren't -- that nothing went out without your 

approval in that regard.· 

MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: I don' t-­

said. I don't remember at this p:)int. 

I wouldn't characterize what I 

You tell me what I said. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: But, that is your general-- I would be· 

happy to give you the oon- I believe that is your testim::>ny. 
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MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: When a press release goes ·. out of the 

Department of Law and Public Safety, I know about it, and approve. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay, that. is the point I am making. In 

that regard then, sir, I ask you: Given, I assune your camri.tment, 

that the public business is public, that we don't have secret public 

business, why, sir, wasn't it irrmediately corrected when Taggart's name 

was anitted, when you knew him to be the real party and interest? 

MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: A decision was•· made by the Director of the 

Division of Motor Vehicles that with respect to · the initial 

announcenent - and, this was the initial announcenent - the inclusion 

of Mr. Taggart' s name would detract fran the main · thrust of the · 

release, which was the thrust being the availability of the locations. 

'lbere · was no intent, as far as I know, fran Director Snedeker to 

absolutely obscure the nane of Mr. Taggart for all tine to cane. It 

was just the original release that we were addressing ourselves to. 
ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: But;, then it is fair to say that, if I 

put it in your terms, for the sake of a positive press release-

MR. KIMMEil-1AN: '!bat's not- I didn't use that tenn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:. Well, I'm characterizing, and maybe I'm 

characterizing it inappropriately, but that is the impression I'm 

getting. · In any event, for the sake of this press release, the fact 

that the real appointee was not mentioned - that· Taggart' s name was 

deleted. 

MR. KIMMEil-1AN: Do you have the original press release in 

front of you? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: No, we've requested that, and . it 

hasn't been delivered to us as of yet. 

MR. KIMMEIW\N: In the press release, it talks .. about the 

availability of the locations if you read it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I believe, Attorney General, the 

original press release, as indicated to us the first thing this :norning 

by Mr. Smith, that Taggarts was part and parcel of that press release, 

and subsequent to the :norning of the 11th meeting and subsequent to a 

meeting thereafter with Mr. Kline, Mr. Smith, Mr. Taggart, and Mr. 

Kohlns -- at that juncture, Taggart was then removed fran the--

MR. KIMMEil-11\N: Draft. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: Draft. Were you aware of that? 
MR. KIMMEI.&N: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI : Was Mr. Cannon aware of that? 
MR. KIMMEI.&N: You'll have to ask Mr. Cannon. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: Mr. Cannon? 
MR. CANNOO: (fran audience} Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: Will you step up here, please? Mr. 

Cannon, were you aware of the original draft which included Taggart in 

the announcing of the Sears deal? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Did you get a copy--

'1Hl4AS CNH:N: No, sir, I was not. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Did you get a oopy of the original press 

release prepared? 
MR. CANNOO: No, sir, I did not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Were you aware that Taggarts was 

included in the original 0 press release that was drafted? 

MR. CANNON: No, I was not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: Did you discuss that with Mr. Smith? 

MR. CANNON: I discussed with Mr. Smith the fact that Mr. 

Taggart was going to be the .vendor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Continue, sir. What else did you 
discuss al:x>ut utilizing his name? 

MR. CANNOO: He told me - he. told me that Mr. Taggart was 

the vendor for Sears. I didn't know who Mr. Taggart was beyond that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, based on that, you didn't see the 
relevance of including his name. 

MR. CANNOO: No, I did not. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, you were probably one of the few 

people that didn't know who Taggart was, right? 
MR. CANNCN: Sorry, but I did not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I aSSllITE you know now, right? 
MR. CANNCN: Yes, I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Did anyone ever advise you to tell 

Mr. Smith that Taggart's name should be deleted from any press release 

or not mentioned in any press release? 

MR. CANNOO: No, sir. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: When did you first becaile aware that 

it was deleted - Mr. Taggart's name? 

release. 

MR. CANNON: 'l'hat it was deleted? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Yes. 

MR. ooom: It was deleted fran what--

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Fran the original draft of the press 

MR. CANNON: Fran the original press release? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Because according to the ~ttorney 

General, the final press release - or, the press release - was a 

product of yours and Mr. Smith's, collectively. 

MR. CANNON: That is correct. I was not aware until last 

Friday that the name ..,- that Mr. Taggart'.s name was in the first press 

release, or an earlier draft of the press release. It was not in- It 

was not in the draft that I received. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Did- Were you in attendance at the 

meeting on the 11th? 

MR. CANNON: ·· No, I was not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN · BOCCHINI: When the release was issued on the. 

13th, at that time, were you aware of the fact of the existence of 

Taggarts as being the concessionaire? 

MR. CANNON: Yes, I was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And, you drafted the press release in 
conjunction with Mr. Smith? 

MR. CANNON: That is correct. Mr. Smith and the Attorney 

General and I went through several drafts in our office, but Mr. 

Taggart's name was never in any draft that I had -- that I received. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BO:CHINI: . You- You, fe1r. Smith,. and the 

Attorney General went through several drafts-­

MR. CANNON: . Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: -of the press release? 

MR. CANNON: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: H™ many is several? 

MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: It wasn't that way. I qidn't deal with Mr. 

Smith. I dealt with Mr. Cannon. 
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MR. CANNCN: Mr. Smith sent me down a draft. Mr. Smith sent 

me down a draft that did not have Mr. Taggart's name in it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Then it is fair-

MR. CANNON: I made some changes in that release. l sent 

it in to the Attorney General. we went through several other drafts. 

Mr. Smith did not have a hand in those subsequent drafts. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Then it is fair to say that the Attorney 

General never·instructed you to put Mr. Taggart's name back into any of 

those drafts either. 

MR. CANNCN: He did not. The Attorney General-

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: we are not asking beyond what you know, 

sir-

MR. CANNON: Yeh, yeh. · 

ASS.EMBLYMAN HERMAN: -whether we think that that is correct 

or incorrect, I think that that is-

MR. CANNON: I had no discussion with the Attorney General 

about Mr. Taggart's--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: -a matter of -- a public policy 

decision. 

ASS.EMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Your testi.m::>ny is, you had no 

discussion with the Attorney General with regard to Mr. Taggart. Is 

that correct? 

MR. CANNON: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Then, all you know with regard to the 

release that was prepared is as you have testified so far. Is that 

correct? 

MR. CANNCN: That is oorrect. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I don't think there is anything further 

to belabor this witness with, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I don't think so either. Thank you, 

sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHlNI: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Mr. Attorney General, if I may through 

you, Mr. Chairman, I assume that you are aware that we have Derrocrats 
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who are connected, and we have Republicans that are connected, and I 

knCM we all knCM that in the scherre of governrrent. I assume that you 

were aware that Mr. Taggart was a contributor to the Republican party? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: I didn't knCM that he was a contributor as 
such. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, did you- I assume that you had 

been--
ASSEMBLYMAN SCX::CHINI: He was a g<Xld friend, or you didn't 

MR. KIMMELMAN: I, I- No, I considered him as identified, 

to use your word. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I assume that you have been at :EX>litical 

functions where he has been present? 
MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I think so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Now, I assume it would be fair to say · 
that sare of them have been of the nore expensive variety? 

MR. KIMMEI.J.1AN: I think I saw him at perhaps a Governor's 
ball. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: But, isn't it--
MR. KIMMEIJv1AN: I don't recall, but I believe it could have 

very well taken place. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Isn't it fair to say, sir, that usually 

in the scheme of things as we all knCM them who cane out of the process 

and we do all cane out of the process -- that people who usually 

appear to those things usually aren't there as invitees, but usually 
purchase their tickets and are saretimes called contributors? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, you indicated- And, why I asked 

you that, because you seemed to indicate in reading this transcript -
at least in my copy of the transcript that I got fran the last hearing 

-- that you were unaware that this man was even a contributor to the 

Republican party. 

MR. KIMMEIJ.iAN: '!bat wasn't my wording. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, sir, I don't want to argue about 

it nCM, but the record will stand on what the record is. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ~CHINI: . If I might, Attorney General, you _ 
would prefer to ask Mr. Kline?_. 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: r think the word was -what- The question 

. pertained to whether he was a substantial contributor, sanething like 

that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let me ask the question. Let me ask the 

question and then raise. the answer. Let-~ just read it to be fair. 

Are you with me? -
ASSEMBLYMAN SOIUBER: Gb ahead~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN:· "were you aware, General, that Taggart 

was a large -GOP contributor?" Let me just read your answer before you 

respond, sir. · "MR KIMMELMAN: well, you used the word large and you 

used the word contributor. . I am aware that he identifies with the 

Republican party. -- I have no -personal knowledge, nor_ did I then, as to 
whether he was a. contributor or -not.,; 

MR. KIMMELMAN: That was a correct answer . then, and it is a 
correct answer. today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, you' re saying - that you used the 
, ,, 

nooifier "large." But, you knew that he was a-: You didn't indicate 

that the way I read that question. I just want to correct it for the 

record, because apparently the way I read it is that you didn't know 

whether he was a contributor, or any contributor, or not. 
MR.· KIMMELMAN: . Read my answer again. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I have, sir. "I :nave no personal 

knowledge, nor did I then,·- as to_ whether he was a contributor or not. 0 

It doesn't say, "I have no personal knowledge, nor did I then, as to 

whether _he was a large contributor or not." I'm reading your answer • 

. Here is your answer, sir. 

MR. 'KIMMELMAN: Well, what is incorrect about the answer? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, I-- You told me that you didn't 
know whether he was a contributor. 

MR. KIMMEII-1AN :- I have .no personal_ knowledge. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: · And, you're saying that you attended 

fund-raising events as to whether he was there, and you don't know he 

was a contributor. 
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MR. KIMMEI.MAN: I believe I saw him at an affair. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay, Mr. K:i.mrlelman -- Attorney General. 

,AgSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: So,_ he knew he was a contributor, but 

as to the size, there was no certainty one way or the other •. Is that a 

fair representation? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: Pardon? I didn't hear your question. 

· ,AgSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: You knew of his being a contributor, 

but as to a description as large, small, or medium, you hcd no 

knowledge. 

MR. KIMMEL&N: No, I have no personal knowledge whether the· 

man is a contributor or not. I can asswne he is, but that is not 

personal knowledge. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Don't they . say in the law,. 

circumstantial evidence is sanetimes the best? 

MR. KIMMEI.l-1AN: well, we are riot dealing here with-. This is 

not. a court of law. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Sane-
ASSF.MBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: If I may, in the establishment of a· 

agency, were . the specific rules drafted for the establishment of a . 

limited agency? 

MR. KIMMEI.l-1AN: I don't know that, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Do you know, Mr. Kline? 

MR. KLINE: I didn't hear the question. I'm .sorry. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Were there specific rules within the 

Oepartment that were drafted for a limited agency? 

MR. KLINE: No, there were no rules drafted for a limited 

agency. 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: But, he was- But, they were 

appointed. N'len I say "they,." Taggart was appointed as a agent, not as 

a limited agent. 

MR. KLINE: well, as a matter--

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: The press · accounts am so forth refer 

to him as being a limited agent. 

MR. KLINE: It is a matter of semantics. I mean, his agency 

was limited to photo licensing. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: Sears and Taggarts is the matter of 

semantics, as well. 

MR. KLINE: Well, you're asking m:. the question as to, was he 

a limited agent. His agency was limited in that he could only - his 

ex>rporation could only issue photo licenses and nothing else. And, 
that is the best answer I can give you, Mr. Chainnan. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: Did you' receive any type of legal 

q:>inion? You were the Deputy Director at that time, and now Acting 

Director. You weren't acting in a legal capacity. Did you receive a 

legal q:>inion as to the legality df any type of contract? 

MR. KLINE: we received-- When we first engaged in 

discussions with Sears, we received - we sought and we received 

because at that time we believed that we \t.Uuld be dealing with Sears 

solely. We didn't know. about concessionaires, as m::>st of the public 

doesn't know al:x:>ut concessionaires. 
And, we sought and we receivea, and· have in our files, a 

legal opinion as to allowing a mercantile retail store -- whatever you 

call it - engage In this type of Motor Vehicle transaction. That we 

do have. 

Subsequent to that, · we learned that we would have to deal 

through an approved concessionaire. It was oor original intention that 

Sears would be doing this, and that is why we went to Sears, and not to 

Taggart. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: But, the contract is between the 

Division of r-t:>tor Vehicles and Driver's Licenses, Inc., or, in effect, 

Taggart. 

Chicago? 

Guard. 

MR. KLINE: Correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXHINI: And, when you went t~ You went to 

MR. KLINE: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: Did Mr. Snedeker accanpany you? 

MR. KLINE: No, he was serving his country in the National 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: When did you go to Chicago? 

MR. KLINE: What is that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: When did you go to Chicago? 
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,, ... ·\ 

MR. KLINE: December 13 and 14. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHINI: At that time, were YOJ advised that 

you would be ltt'Orking with a concessionaire if the deal went through? 

MR. KLINE: Oh, yes, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: so, fran the interim -. fran December · 

13 - to the time of the announcement, there had been no legal q>inion 

rendered as to hCM to handle a ooncessionaire? 

MR. KLINE: No, there was no call-

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Fran a contractual standpoint? 

MR. KLINE: · There was none called· for. The Director, under 

Title 39, had the power, as he has since 1906, under all fonner 

.administrations that had this statute intact, to appoint agents. our 

ooncern initially was wheh we ltt'Ould appoint a mercantile establishment 

like Sears. That was a unique aspect to it -- to app::>int, .· whethe~ it 

was a optical person, or a tobacoonist, . or whoever. . I mean, that was 

sanething that we didn't feel at that time we needed .arrJ legal 

clarification on. We were appointing an agent, just like we have a 

Bakel':s Basin Agency, or a Vineland Agency. Yoo app::>int an agent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: · Are there arrJ twer or three-location 

agents, nore than one-location agent, in the State presently? 

MR. KLINE: No. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHINI: The Administration officials, Attorney 

General, have said that there is no difference between the Taggart 

arrangement and the current practice of turning over eadl of the 

fifty or so local offices of the Division of f\k>tor Vehicles to private 

p::>litical operatives, who are allowed to run them for personal profit. 

How can this be true when each f\k>tor Vehicle office nay be ltt'Orth tens 

of thoosands of dollars, while the Taggart's oontact is ltt'Orth millions? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: I don't kno.., that.Taggart's. oontract is ltt'Orth 

millions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: We discussed this at the last meeting, 

Mr. Bocdlini, with Mr. - with the Attorney General, if. I remember 

right -- and, we went O'ver sane of the figures, and I think we oouldn't 

readl a oonclusion as to what, in fact, it might have been worth. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI:. By way of clarification, I know you 

refer to all of the. other agencies receiving $1.80, and the figures 

work out, in relation to the $2.20 scenario with sears, to $1.87 for . 
, , , I. 

Taggarts. Is· there any particular reason· for the additional seven 

cents? 

MR. KLINE: No,· in negotiating that figure, Mr. Chainnan, 

~at was based upon the fact that these were their CX>St considerations 

to the agent as to his expenditures, and it worked out just to the 

seven cents more than what we pay an.agent. 
As was stat:ed, I think, before, currently now for agents we 

pay- the State of New Jersey pays - for the rent, the utilities, the 

janitorial services, and under this arrangement, the agent would be 

paying for all those types of services, and the State would not. So, 

in essence, it is at least as mudl as we are paying agents, and 

probably less, due to the fact that we are not paying for rent, heat, 
air-:-conditioning, etc. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: Attorney General, in relation to the 

March 11 meeting, whidl evidently was - arises out of the request of 

the mem:> that - of March 6-. Isthat correct? 

MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: That is what I understand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: was there a discussion as to how one 

would handle - hCM the·oivisiol'} should handle Taggarts in relation to 

the announcement? 

MR. KIMMEIJ.1AN: I don't recall that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: Does that mean it may have happened, 

and you just don't remember? 

MR. KIMMEIJo1AN: I don't--_ I don't want to say it may have or 

it didn't have. I don't recall any discussion as to the handli03 of 

Mr. Taggart's name. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: But, you were aware of Mr. Taggart and 

Mr. Taggart being the concessionaire for sears. 

MR. KIMMEIJo1AN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN :OOCCHINI: And, you also serve on the Sports 

Exhibition Authority with Mr. Taggart. 

MR. KIMMEIJo1AN: Yes. ' 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And, you have also been to several 
ball games, etc. with Mr. Taggart. Correct? 

MR. KIMMEL.MAN: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And, he is personal frierrl of yours, 

as well. Is that correct? 
MR. KIMMEL.MAN: Well-

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I believe that is what you 

characterized at the last rreeting. 

MR. KIMMEL.MAN: I characterize him as a friend. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Notwithstanding that, in relation to 

the Governor's statement subsequent to the handling of this issue, that · 

the withholding of the information in determining Taggart' s selection 

was inexcusable, do you feel as wrong in relation to the failure to 
bring Taggart into the press account as the Administration has made 

Mr. Snedeker culpable for the failure to do so? 
MR. KIMMEL.MAN: Well, I feel that there was an error in 

judgment on the part of our Department. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Can I just pursue that for a rnc:xrent, 

with your permission? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: In one rnooent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Go ahead. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: The Governor said that, "This 

Administration requires a policy of candor, honesty, forthrightness in 

matters dealing with public issues and public :noney." And, in relation 

to the possible issuance of in excess of two million drivers' licenses 
at 21 locations, at best, you can say it was an error in judgment, and 

there were no special considerations taken. 
MR. KIMMELMAN: I said the lack of disclosure of Mr. 

Taggart 's name in the initial press release, as we look back, was a 
departmental error in judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And, if we hadn't read about it in the 

newspaper accounts sane weeks later, when would we have heard about it, 

Mr. Attorney General? 
MR. KIMMELMAN: I can't answer that question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Mr. Herman? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I just have a few so we can finish up. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI': Mr •. Snedeker, you' 11-

ASSE:MBLYMAN HERMAN: I am just . going to try to take no nore 

than five minutes, if I may •. You testified at the earlier hearing, in 

my review of it anyway, that you nonnally didn't get involved with the 

. q>erations of the Motor Vehicles Deparbnent -- that it basically ran 

itself~ 
,. 

MR. KIMMELMAN: '!hat is ex>rrect. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: And, I assume that you nonnally didn't 

get involved with its press releases. Is that oorrect? 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: '!bat is generally correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: can . you tell ne why, in this instance, . 

. you did? Why, in essence, you took the bull by the horns am had a 

joint press release? 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: Well, don't say that I took the bull by the 

horns. It is your words. But, I indicated earlier, in response to ooe 

of your questions as to why Director Snedeker felt that a neeting with 

the Olief of Staff was necessary, and I indicated• to you that an 

arrangement· .such as .this· .on a statewide basis for photo drivers' 

. licenses was unique. It was a first. And, after a discussion, it was 
.felt that . the announcement should be a departmental announcenent, 

rather thari just by the Division. 

ASSE:MBLYMAN HERMAN: I just have one or two, if I may~ Not-

I . believe that you have been characterized as saying · that after all 

this hit the public press, and that. the Governor gave you a vote of 

ex>nfidence. I believe you testified that the Governor gave you a vote 

of confidence. 

MR. KIMMEL.MAN: I don't want to characterize- I don't know 

if I testified to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN.HERMAN: well, didn't you tell the press that the 

Governor gave you a voteof confidence? 

MR. KIMMEL.MAN: . I'd have to see what I told the press. 

ASSE:MBLYMAN HERMAN: But, don't you recall telling the press 

that you gave him a vote of oonfidence -- that the Governor gave you a 

vote of confidence? 

MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: I believe I read . in the paper that ·the 

Governor made a statement to that effect. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, did the Governor give you a vote 

of confidence in this matter, .sir? 

MR. KIMMEIJt1AN: I do not · disclose what · my personal 

conversations are with the Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, again, the Governor-- Well, it 

may be that the Governor and you have a different point of view in that 

regard, and I would like to know. The Governor said that this was 

stupid and ill-conceived. I want to know whether he said to the public 

that he was going to a:mnunicate the message to you and Mr. Snedeker. 

I'm asking · you, sir, was that ccmnunicated to you? were you given a 

vote of confidence, or did he teli you your actions were stupid and 

ill-conceived, or words to that effect, $ir? 

MR. KIMMELMAN: You· ask the Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: He's not here, sir. I'm asking you. 

MR. KIMMEu-tAN: You ask the Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So, you are not going to- Just, just ' 

one last observation. If it becomes known - if the public's business 

eventually becanes public - · that· Mr. Snedeker was requested to resign · 

over advice that he was taking, don't you think it only fair, sir, that 
whoever gave him that advice should also resign? 

MR. KIMMEu-tAN: What advice are you talking about? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: The advice that the contact was 

appropriate and the right thing to do. 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: The answer to your question is no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Okay. Thank you for your opinion, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: Arrj other questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Attorney General, as I understand it 
fran your testinony; if we can pull this bade again to what we are 

supposed to be here for, as I understand it, with regard to Assembly 

Bill 361 O, which would extend the life of the tine period for the 

inplementation of photo drivers' licenses, that you would have no 

problem with that particular extension.· Is that correct? 

·MR. KIMMEu-tAN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And with regard to the Assembly bill we 

·discussed at the last session and your testimony today would be that­

that is the step in the right direction also? 
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MR. KIMMEI1-1AN: That's correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And between yourself and Mr. Kline, it 

is my understanding that the whole genesis of this issue in the 

beginning was the fact that there was a problem with regard to 

inplementing a statutory basis, as far as photo ID. licenses being 
available to the public, was in ~the first place. Is that correct? Is 

that correct? 

MR. KLINE: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And that is my understanding also that 

with the use of a store more convenient to the public such as Sears was 

the purpose of making that m:::>re accessible to the public. Is that not 
correct? 

MR. KLINE: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: So that the issue we are really here 

talking about today is the fact of the issue of Mr. Taggart' s name not 

being put into a press release. Is that correct? Is that correct? 

MR. KIMMEIMAN: Yes. In the initial press release, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: In retrospect, as a result of what you 

heard, it \tX>uld be fair to say that that was not correct? It was not 

proper to have done that? Is that correct? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: It was an error in judgment, yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. But other than that, I firxi no 

other-- I find nothing since this testimony or any of the testimony I 

have heard on Wed- last week, that would indicate any type of 

criminal role in doing other than a misjudgment in judgment. 
MR. KIMMEIJ-1AN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN El)CCHINI: I don't think anybody has atterrpted to 

infer that, Pat, and we agree with you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Well, Mr. Chairman, I am glad you agree 
with me, but the tone of the questioning has certainly not been that 

way, in my opinion. 
. ASSEMBLYMAN MARl'IN: Mr. Attorney General, in light of 

whatever difficulties the public or this Carmittee or anyone else may 

decide occurs because of the atterrpt to have these motor vehicle 

agencies put into a large retail outlet such .as Sears, do you- are 
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you still of the opinion -- if you ever were -- that this type of 

process for the benefit of the public, that is, to have these licenses 

made available in sane type of large outlet attempt to be continued? 

MR. KIMMEIBAN: It was a good idea at the time, aoo it 

remains a good idea. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARI'IN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OCCCHINI : My other questions? Thank you, 
Attorney General. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Thank you very much. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXHINI: Bob, could you remain because we may 

have a couple of m:>re questions. 
MR. KLINE: Sure. Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OCCCHINI: Excuse Ire. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, are these the last two 

witne~ses? 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Yes. Actually for the m:>st part, we 

are probably are only going to have a few questions of Mr. Kline, and 

they may be in conjunction with Mr. Snedeker, so we should be able to 

be out of here, we hope, within a half hour. 
Cliff, it is good to see you this norning. 

FOBMER DIRECIOR CLIFFORD W. SNF.DEKER: I would like to make a statement 
before I start, and that statement is very brief. I would like to 

clear up sane articles that were read in the paper, sane statements 
that I supposedly made. I would like to say 11CM that the statement 

that I made in the paper which • said that I want to- I wanted a 
favorable story in the paper when we first started the program to 

announce the Sears program is incorrect. I never said that to a 
reporter at all. That was never said by m: to any newspaper reporter 

or anyone else for that matter of fact. 
I don't believe that the State Ethics Code has been 

violated. I think you have shown that today. I was told that the Code 

of Ethics was violated. I did not know about the Code of Ethics in the 

Department, my Division. I am sorry. That is my fault. Hawever, it 
was not published. It never was published-- by required-- by law. 

And that is not a Code of Ethics as far as I am concerned. It holds­

I understand, legally, it holds no weight. 
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The Director does have the authority to appoint agents 

throughout the State of New Jersey. He is required to appoint one in 

every county or Oller 300,000 population. 

I think that in appointing someone to do this for sears or 

for any other major store is Sattething that you ought to look into. 

Sears is still interested. In my last day in office, I talked to a 

representative of J.C. Penneys, who personally called on the phone and 

I answered the phone; they are interested. I suggest that you 

gentlemen and ladies oontinue • in that effort. I think it's a viable 

way to have the public served in this. State, by going to a major 

store. 

If I could go back again, we would have announced Bill 

Taggart's name because it was not a secret as far as I was ooncerned. 

I knew about it. My staff knew about it. The Attorney General's 

Office knew about. The Administration knew about it,. in that I did 

talk to Greg Stevens about it, and he did knCM that. So, it was not a 

secret. '!here are many people in my Division. 

The thing that I was ooncerned about and when I asked for 

that meeting with Mr. Stevens ;..._ was I wanted to knCM, since it was a 

major project, as far as I was concern~ I think it was a milestone 

in the Division; it took us a year to get Sears convinced to do this. 

But I thought maybe the Administration would want to make the 

announcement, and that was the only reason that that letter was sent to 

Mr. Stevens, not to try to hide Mr. Taggart's name, not to try to take 

Mr. Taggart's name out of the release, but only to say: ~uld the 

Governor like to announce this, through the Administration, or does he 

want to the Division of ~tor Vehicles to announce this? 

There is no contract required for appointment of any 

agencies. And I think that was brought out earlier •. We, when we went 

in, fourxl that there were simple letters stating that you are an agent 

and you can be removed at the authority of the Director as the statute 

says. We made a contract, only in the sense that we wanted to show 

that an agent had to do certain things. If we required you to hire 

people, you hired them. If you didn't hire them, we'd relieve you. So 

we wanted sane sort of ground rules. And that is why the oontract was 

made. 
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The question of why the contract with somebody that didn't 

exist- well, Bill Taggart. didn't exist. Maybe his corporation 

didn't and he wouldn't have gotten paid anything unless he signed that 

contract. And he did not sign that contract. So as far as I was 

concerned, the appointment was of that concern that was going to file 

as a corporation. And since they didn't file till after that date, the 

contract was not signed. And once the contract was signed, as far as I 

was concerned, then we could proceed with getting Mr. Taggart to go in 

and run the operations under the photo drivers' schools. 

Our inpact was to sha,, the public that you could go to 
Sears. When we tell you to go to Bakers Basin Agency, we don't tell 

· you to go to the Johns Hansbury Motor Vehicle Agency. We tell you to 

go up to Motor Vehicle at Bakers Basin. we don't announce the 

individual's names because they're not run by individuals; it's run by 

the State of New Jersey. 

We feel that the Sears contract is a good contract. One,· 

that you would go to Sears. It would serve the public and the State. 

I still sey it is good for the public, and I hope that you'll folla.v up 

with it. 

The reason for this ~eting, I understand, is to decide 
whether or not you ought to-- you ought to delay photo drivers' 

licenses. Ladies and gentlemen, if you don't, you' re going to have 

mass ci::>nfusion in the agencies. And the public has never been required 

to go to a motor vehicle agency before. NCM they are required to go to 

get their picture taken. And if you want to go up there and stand in 

line -- and you are going to stand in line -- to · get your picture 

taken, I suggest you delay this until you a:me up with a viable 

situation, as Sears or Penneys or Bambergers or whoever you want to, 

but get the public to go on a very convenient spot, in the evening 

hours, on Saturdays, and on weekends. I highly reccrmend that you 
delay this. 

I knoo one other thing that came out of this, and I am very 

happy. I think that maybe if nothing else the future directors will 

have a way to go. Put this out to bid. 

think you ought to put it out to bid. 
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arena. That is the way to go, gentlemen. But you put a burden upon 

the Director of Motor Vehicles that you have, since 1906. Every 

Director has had to make these appointments, and they nave been 

political appointnents. Let's not kid ourselves. We know that has 

think they performed a little better. But get it out of the political 

arena. Only make sure you give the Director a little leeway on how to 

do this because when an agent quits, it's not like closing a shoe store 

and saying, "We' 11 open another one in a week." You have to go out to 

bid. It is not quite that easy, so give them sane time in how to do 

that and how to work up a system. 

I will answer any questions you may have. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: Cliff, I have to ask you because, you 

know, I have-- I have this longstanding ooncem about the public's 

business being the public. There is---, I preface it with a cament 

that there was a recent-- recent story or an editorial in the Trenton 

paper that said that you were requested to resign, that Mr. Stevens 

asked you to resign. Is that so? 

MR. SNEDEKER: Assemblyman, let me say to you that no one 

forced my hand to sign my signature and resign. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: That is not my question, sir. 

MR. SNEDEKER: I know it is not, Assemblyman, but that is the 

way I am going to answer it. I resigned under my own free will. No 

one forced me to resign. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let me repeat the question, sir, and I 

hope I am not badgering, Mr. Schuber. I will ask you politely and 

quietly as I can. Given the fact - just in my view - that the 
public's business is the public's business, I am asking you whether you 

were requested by Mr. Stevens or anyone else in this Administration to 

resign before you actually did? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I, again, have to say to you that that is my 

own free will and acoord that I resigned. I signed that under no 

duress at all or under no threats. I signed that of my own free will. 

sir? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You are not going to answer my question, 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, sir. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: So you don't believe that the public is 

entitled to know? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I am no longer a public official, Mr. 

Assemblyman, so I am here as a volunteer today. I really don't have to 

. be here. I am here to answer the questions the way that I want to 

answer them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Well, I . would hope that you would 
honestly- answer than honestly and directly because I had that type 

of respect for you. 

MR. SNEDEKER: I know yoo do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And I hope that after you leave I still 

do. 

MR. SNEDEKER: I kno.v, Marty. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: And as a longstanding colleague, don' t 

you think the public is entitled to kno.v whether you were asked to 

resign? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I think that is immaterial today. I think 
that I resigned because I did not know that · the Code of Ethics 

existed. I was told that rrorning by the Attorney General that we 

violated the Code of Ethics. And I resigned under that basis because-

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: (interrupting) For God's sake, Cliff, 

he didn't even kno.v it existed. 

MR. SNEDEKER: Well, I didn't kno.v it existed, but I resigned 
I 

because I was told that rrorning that I violated the Code of Ethics, and 

that is why I resigned. 

Cliff. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: Maybe he should have resigned also, 

MR. SNEDEKER: Assemblyman, I can only do what I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: I'm sorry; go on, Marty. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Yoo know, I bothers me because we have 

been longstanding colleagues, and we fought fran time to time, but 

every tine we finished up a tcpic, I think we left as friends. And I 

think that I can say that every time I called your Department that you 

were helpful, and polite, and courteous. I'll say that publicly. I 

have always said that. We may have had policy differences fran time to 
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time about how to . implement things, but after we got through the 

hashing, the clawing, an:! the screaming, we always cane out with sane 

sort of lllltual situation. 

M a longstanding legislator and public official, quite 
frankly, I am sanewhat surprised that you \tK)Uld take the position that 

the public is not entitled to be involved with the public's business. 

Don't you think that the public is entitled to know whether anybody in 

this Administration, including Mr. Stevens, asked you to resign before 

you did? Don't you think that is the public's business? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I resigned of my own. free will and accord, 

Assemblyman. That is the only thing I can tell you. 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You-- Cliff, you know-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXHINI: If I may, Marty-­

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I am not going to ask anymore. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Marty? 

. ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, he has answered the 

ASSEMBLYMAN EO:CHINI : Marty. Mr. Snedeker--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: ( interrupting) Excuse me. I hope the 

SCI asks you the saine question under oath, Cliff. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Mr. Snedeker, who has-

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER:. Mr. Chairman, many of these questions 

could have been asked by the SCI, and that is the reason I made the 

statement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXHINI: I'm sure many of these probably will 

be.and probably many, many others. But notwithstanding that, I have a 

question that relates to that neeting of the 11th and also the press 

. announcement, Mr. Snedeker. Who made the decision to delete Taggart 

fran the press announcerrent? 

MR. SNEDEKER: The decision was made by the Division of Motor 

Vehicle and our staff, and we decided at , that time that the impact 

"WOUld be Sears-- to go to Sears. It was not made by the Attorney 

General. The press release -- it was sent over to the Attorney 

General; the only one to my knowledge because I didn't see the one that 
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went over to him -- did not have Mr. Taggart' s name in it. Or Drivers 

· License School, Inc. was not in that release. It was made by the 

Division of Motor Vehicle because we were going to send you to Sears. 

And that was the impact of the release~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN B:>CCHINI: That.press release-­

MR. SNEDEKER: Only on that basis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: That · press · release went out 

subsequent to the meeting on the 11th? Excuse me, I mean meetings on 

the 11th,your first being, I believe, a meeting with you and Mr. Kline 

and the Attorney General and Mr. Stevens and then--

MR. SNEDEKER: It went after that, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI: Excuse· me? 

MR. SNEDEKER: It went out after that~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Then, in addition, wasn't there a 

meeting with the two of you, Mr. Taggart; Mr. Smith-· 

MR. SNEDEKER: A release went out after that also. .After 

· both of those meetings. A release went out after the meeting with Mr. 

Stevens and after the meeting with Mr. Taggart and Kohms and Smith and 

Kline and 11¥Self. It went out after that. That is when the release 

went out. It was- I don't know what ti.Ina because it was not sent out 

• by the· Division. It was sent out by the Department. It went over to 

the General's Office and the release was rewritten there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: . Did Mr. Taggart request that his name 

be deleted? 

MR. SNEDEKER: He expressed some concern, and we all did 

because- Not to hide his name- Only in the sense to express eoncern 

that the impact was Sears. Mr. Smith was directed to tell the public 

· that it was- Mr. Taggart who was involved. He was also directed to tell 

them that we are going to pay $2. 20. 'lbere was nothing to hide. It 

was-- If we were goil'l3 to hide this we wculdn' t have all the people 

that were involved into .it. In fact, all, I guess all the licensing 

people in the Division were involved in it. My Assistant Division 

. Director there, his staff ,had met with Mr. Tagg.art to tell him exactly 

what would have to be done. so it wasn't a secret, in that sense, as 

far as we were ooncerned. It was a misjudgment. There is no question 
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in my 'mind. If hindsight is better than foresight, I would go back 

again am put Mr. Taggart's name into it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: Which attorneys for Taggart dealt with 

your Administration or your Division? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I didn't talk to any attorneys. Mr. DelDeo, I 

believe is the name, am he talked to our staff arrl our legal staff and 

Mr. Kline. I didn't talk to any of the attorneys. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN J:0:CHINI: was Mr. Del.Deo, Mr. Kline, the only 

attorney that dealt with his firm? were they the only firm that dealt 

with the Division of Motor Vehicles? 

MR. KLINE: Yeah, the only contact was with Del.Deo' s firm, 

and, again, that was basically through the mail in preparing draft 

agreement back and forth. Other than that, there was no contact. 

MR. SNEDEKER: I believe there was an attorney fran sears 

that we discussed with, as we went along. But that was not 

representing Mr. Taggart. 

attorney? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI : Is DelDeo Mr. Taggart Is regular 

MR. KLINE: I have no idea, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. SNEDEKER: I don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: On the 13th, the announcement was 

made, Cliff, and subsequent thereto, the Governor had sare vecy harsh 

statements. Do you believe those statements, in fairness, all belong 

on the shoulders of Cliff Snedeker? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I think the Governor made those statements 

that it was wrong not to release the name. It was stupid. I would 

agree with the Governor it was wrong not to release the name. Did we 

directed him to? You'll have to ask the Governor. But he never said 

to me personally that it was stupid on my part. I did talk to the 

Governor. He thought it was wrong that the name wasn't in there, when 

he talked to me that evening, and I agreed with him. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Did- On the meeting of the 11th, to 

the best of your recollection, can you tell me what took place in 

there? 
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MR. SNEDEKER: Yes, in the :rreeting of the 11th, the reason 

that :rreeting on the 11th was set up, as far as I was concerned, was to 
decide whether or not the Administration wanted to make the 

' 

announcement rather than the Division of Motor Vehicle. And that was 

the only direction. '!here was no-- no intention on my part, or Mr. 

Kline, I'm sure, and the Division, to ask whether or not Mr. Taggart's 

name should or should not be included in the release. 

I think Mr. Stevens said it, and the Attorney General said 

it today, there was concern about the legality of it. Mr. Stevens, in 

fact, turned to the Attorney General and said, "Is it legal? Is it 
ethical?" And far as that concern, it was. 

Mr. Stevens asked us, asked Mr. Kline and myself, whether or 
not Mr. Taggart was the only one who oould do this. As far as we were 

concerned, he was the only one that we thought could do this at the 

time. we didn't go out to bid to look for other people, but we had 

our- I didn't talk to anyone else; my staff did. My staff talked to 
, three A's for quite some time and got nc:Mhere. '!hen when we talked to 

Sears, they did express an interest. Sears delayed us for quite a bit 
of time before they would really get down and start discussing it with 

us. 

Our staff, I understand - I found out later, and I didn't 

knCM this at the time-- went to- went to K-Mart and also, I think, . 

talked to a Jefferson Ward and didn't follow-- They didn't oone back 

to us, and we didn't follCM up because then Sears expressed an interest 

that they were ready for a go and really wanted to get down and 

negotiate and talk to us. 
Uh, but at that :rreeting, it was only for information 

purposes. Did the Governor's Office want to announce this or should 
the Division of f.k>tor Vehicle and the Department of Law and Public 

Safety announce it? 
ASSEMBLYMAN OOCCHINI: And the Governor, who usually likes to 

announce good news, sudl as the reduction in cri:rre rate, and many other 

things, didn't want to have the announce-- take credit in the 

announcement of the first :rrercantile enterprise across the United 

States involving the distribution of photo drivers' licenses? 
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MR. SNEDEKER: . Assemblyman, I personally didn't talk · to the 
. . 

Governor on it. I never talked to the Governor.;.....; . 

ASSEMBLYMAN IO:CHINI: · .. ( interrupting) was that. Mr. Stevens- -

· MR. SNEDEKER: Mr. Stevens· said that he thought that it 

should be· done by the Department and the Division as a joint press 

release, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN J:0:CHINI:. -· was that-- At that time was Mr. 

Taggart's naire d1scussed in relation to the prei;;s release? 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, b.lt Mr. Taggart was- It was known that 

Mr. Taggart was involved. Mr. Taggart was discussed at that meeti03 on 

the legality of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN IO:CHINI: was it also krlown by everybody in · the 

roan that Mr. Taggart was a good friend of the Governor? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I would assume it would be, Assemblyman. I 

don't know if everyl:xxly·krlew that. 

· ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: . was there artf i;;peculation, Cliff, as ·. 

to how Mr.- how much Mr. Taggart would be able to make as a result of 

this? 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, not really because we couldn't guarantee­

And this was one of the things we specifically indicated to him that 

there was no guarantee · that he would get a 50%. It was a guesstimate 

of, you krlow, 50% might go to you. we could have said very well 70% or 

60%. There is · no way of really krlowing because he was only issuing 

photo IDs, and that is after sooeone has a license. 

It wasn't the initial li~nse. It wasn't the young gentleman 

who would cane in . or the young lady who would cane in and take a 

driving test and then get their license for the first time which would 

have to be a p~oto ID. He would not have the authority to issue at'fj of 

those. It was a very limited contract. And that is the reason Mr. 
. ·. 

Taggart was paid $2 .• 20 rather thcUl the normal $1.80 because it was a 

limited contract, and he would have to reimburse Sears for the services 

that we normally would pay, such as cleanup, security, air 

conditioning, space and area. So, that was the reason that we came up 

with that figure. It think that was another question~ 
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ASSEMBLYMAN a:x::CHINI: Did anybody evecy show you, Cliff, the 

language of the Code of Ethics or the Code of Conduct, which, as a 

result thereof, was the reason for the voiding of the contracts between 

the Division and Taggart's? 

MR. SNEDEKER: After the fact, I saw that, yes. But I never 

saw that before, no. I never saw that. It was in the manual. It was 

in the agent's manual. In fact, in the ' manual, it was given to ne 

after- I asked for a cq,y of the manual_. It is not even in the index 

of the manual. It was put in by saneone in the manual as a Code of 

Ethics. 

I understand now, since I have researched this since that 

time, we have talked to the Ethics Canmittee, it's unenforceable. We 

have looked at the statute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BC.X:;CHINI: Do you have a written q;>inion fran the 

Ethics Committee that says it is unenforceable? 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, I don't. I have an opinion fran one of 

our attorneys stating that it would be unenforceable. I understand 

that they talked to the Ethics Committee. I understand that the Ethics 

Committee has asked, or is asking, the Attorney General's Office or 

someone for an opinion whether or not it would be enforceable. vllether 

that has officially been asked, I don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B<X:CHINI: Mr. Attorney General, since you are 

still in the roan, do you think you could make available to us the 

document that you based your decision on for the voiding or the 

nullifying of the proposed contract between Taggart's, vis-a-vis Sears, 

and the Division of Motor Vehicle? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: (fran audience) Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B<XCHINI: Could we have that sane tine today? 

MR. KIMMEI.MAN: Yes, I believe you already have that. Do you 

want the entire document? 

ASSEMBLYMAN B<XCHINI: I Id like to have the entire document. 

MR. SNEDEKER: I have a copy of the Code of Ethics that I was 

given. This was the Code that I read, if you like to have that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN a:x::CHINI: we have that, but, you know, it's two 

pages with no reference, no citation. 
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MR. SNEDEKER: well, this is what I based on resignation on 

this Code of Ethics. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: That entire document there? May I see 

that? 

MR. SNEDEKER: Yes, sir. (hands Chairman document} 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Sacebody late gave you this Code of 

Ethics and gave you the q>pe>rtuni ty to make your decision based on 

this? 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, I was told that it violated the Code of 

Ethics, and then I got the Code of Ethics after I resigned. I saw what 

it was. I probably shot too fast, but that-- sanetimes that happens. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHINI: So, if the Governor is any kind of a 

guy and he realizes you weren't wrong, he should probably be 

reappointing you. And I think the Senate is ready to confirm that 

reappointment. I am sure if you needed a resolution fran Assembly -

even though we don't do advice and consent - we would proba.Qly be very 
-

interested in supporting that. 

But notwithstanding that, Mr. Snedeker, what, in relation to 

the voiding of the contract- Were you told that that oontract nust be 

voided? Did sanebody call you? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I talked to the Attorney General that roc>rning, 

and we said to abort the contract because it did violate the Code of­

our Code of Ethics. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Did he give you a citation at that 
t . ? lltle. 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, I didn't ask for a citation at that time, 

no. I was in the. Attorney General's Off ice in the afternoon when I 

discussed this. I went over to the Attorney General's Office; he was 

not there, but I talked to the First Assistant, Mr. Cole. Didn't see 

the Code of Ethics at that time, but was talking to Mr. Cole and 

decided to r~sign after that period. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Resigned on the basis-

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: (interrupting} You _decided to resign 

after your discussions with Mr. Cole? 
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MR. SNEDEKER: On the basis that I was told I had violated 

the Code of Ethics, that the contract with Taggart violated the Code of 

Ethics. And I resigned on that basis. -niat is the truth. 

ASSF..MBLYMAN HERMAN: That's all of it that you told us here .· 

today, Cliff. . There's just a couple of questions you don't- you 

don't want . to- want answer. But, you know, not answering the 

questions-- . · I'm · not being disrespectful to you because we are 

friends. When· you are asked a question and you avoid it and duck arid 

don't answerit, that is not telling the truth. Okay? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I'm sorry, but I just don't want to answer 

that question,·Mr. Herman, please • 

. · ASSF.MBLYMAN HERMAN: You know, I'm not going to ask you to 

· answer it. I just want to make an observation •. · You know I feel very 

strongly about the public's business being public. And the point­

and the point. simple is that this matter is not going to go to rest if 

you don't think that there isn't people here that are· not going to . 

. pursue why you resigned and whether sanebody asked you to resign, 

because that is part of the . public record · and that is part of the 

process. 

Very candidly you create the impression when witnesses cane 

before this Camnittee, witnesses of high public esteem and high public 

position. and sey the public's business is none· of their business and 

that they. are not entitled to know; you can .al.nost cane up with the 

· conclusion that you are stonewalling the truth. Now I don't want to 

cane up with that conclusion. 
. . . . . 

But if you don't answer, .if you don't answer- Three e>r four 

people who have access to the truth refuse to tell the Legislature, an 

equal branch of government duly elected by the people of this State, 

who have convened a COrrmittee hearing to inquire into this and other 

matters before this Carmittee what the truth is; what is the public 

going to expect? What is the p..tblic going to say? What are .they going 

to expect of all of· us? Because, let me tell you sanething, if your 
reputation is damaged, and the Attorney General's reputation is damaged 

by not saying anything, or the Chief of Staff by refusing to sey it, 

they' re not alone, they are including all of us, bec.ause today-. · in 
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today's lx>at, when you pick on one public official and one public 

official is looked at negatively, it reflects badly on all of us. I 

think you would have to concur with that last observation. 

· MR. SNEDEKER: Assemblyman, I don't want anything to reflect 

on you, but I resigned because I was told I violated the Code of 

Ethics. And that's what I based my own q;>inion on and that is why I 

signed that resignation. It was a one paragraph resignation, which I 

am sure can be made public, that I resigned as a Division Director on 

the--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting} Well, I hope the truth 

comes out sometime and that you do answer that question one of these 

days, Cliff. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: But, Mr. Snedeker, it would appear that 

as a result of that, it was not really a. violation of the Code of 

Ethics of our State but rather sane internal standard that had been set 

up by the agency. Is that correct? 

MR. SNEDEKER: That's correct, but I still, as Division 

Director, should still have known about that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I appreciate that. And I can 

understand that very much, but, basically, what you are saying is that 

you resigned under an error of misconception of what you had thought 

the rules were. Is that correct? If that is the correct statement, I 

will join Mr. Bocchini's resolution, which I think would be bipartisan 

to have you reinstated as our Motor Vehicle Director. I think it is 

proper for this Assembly to have gone on record for that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let me tell you ~thing, I would join 

in that resolution if Mr. Snedeker told the truth and the whole truth 

here today. And by failing to answer a question, a public question, 

when saneone who I respected and admired comes here before this 

Carmittee and refuses to answer a very basic bottan-line question with 

a yes or a no, I don't kn<M if I could support that, Cliff, as nuch as 

I like you. 

MR. SNEDEKER: Okay, Assemblyman, that's-- I appreciate 

that. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Just a couple of IIK)re questions, Mr. 

Snedeker. In relation to your being advised that the contracts were 

nullified and that Taggart could not be a agent, was there ever a 

discussion prior to any of that as to how a limited agent operates or 

exists? 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, but this is- this is not unusual. We've 

had limited, and still have, limited agencies. We have agencies that 

are not computerized that cannot- that cannot issue photo IDs. So, it 

is not an usual situation. You just can't issue a photo ID in a 

noncomputerized agency because you can't get it can't get it into the 

system. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: But, that is a different scenario. 

MR. SNEDEKER: But that is a full agent. That is a full 

agent. And that is a limited agent because he can't issue photo IDs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN Jn:CHINI: However, in the relationship with · 

Taggart and the State, he is a 1 imi ted agent by the virtue he was only 

allowed to do a certain thing. 

MR. SNEDEKER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: 'lllat being the issuing of photo · 

drivers' licenses as opposed to a general agent, who isn't 

caiputerized, is limited in that he doesn't have the availability. So, 

I think there's already is a distinction between the t\«:>. 

MR. SNEDEKER: Well, no--

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: (interrupting) Did the AG's Office or 

anybody from within the legal ccmmuni ty of the Department of Law and 

Public Safety advise you that, in fact, this type of operation was 

okay? 

MR. SNEDEKER: No, we never asked- I never asked for the 

opinion of the AG's Office. 

ASSEMBLY.MAN BOCCHINI: But there was a discussion of--

MR. SNEDEKER: ( interrupting) But there was, I think, fran 

the staff stating whether or not we could do this with a corporation, I 

believe. I don't think there was any opinion on whether it could be 

limited. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: 'Illere was a discussion of this on the 

11th with Mr. Stevens; is that correct? Evidently Mr. Stevens--
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MR. SNEDEKER: (interrupting) There was a discussion that it 

would be limited only to that, it would be limited to nqthing else and 

nothing- The only legal opinion we had was that day that we thought 

it was legal and we were told it was legal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN .BOCCHINI: . And the Attorney General was of · the 

opinion that there would be notl')ing iilegal about that? 

MR. SNEDEKER: At that .time, fran the information he had,. I'm 
. . 

sure, yes.. I don't think the Attorney General either- the Attorney: 

General did not ~ee this Code of Ethics, which I didn't see either, so 

I am sure th.at he did not review that nor did any member of his staff 

did they review that, a Code of Ethics. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: so, in one day you were given a 

two-page Code of Ethics, and your resignation was subsequent thereto? 

. - MR. SNEDEKER: Yes, sir~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX::CHINI: Arr;/ other. questions of Mr. Snedeker? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yes, very briefly, if I may bring back 

to what· we were here before. You have already indicated, I believe, 

sir, by your own testitrony, that · you would like to see the 

implementation on the photo licenses extended. Is that correct? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I already have mine done, but I suggest, for 

your own benefit, so you don't get letters fran constituents, that you 

delay this or you are going to be inundated with letters of people 

standing in li~es. There is no question about it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Okay. SO that's A-3610. With regard 

to Assemblywanan Kalik' s bill with· regard to the bidding of rootor 

vehicle agents, do you believe that to be a step in the right direction 

also? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I think the bidding system is one that should 

be worked on. I'm not sure that that bill- I haven't personally 

reviewed that bill and had fran my staff, before I left, information on 

the bill. But, I think that is the way that eventually, you gentlemen, 

should go, yes • 

. ASSF.MBLYMAN SCHUBER: ·. Right. Your testitrony would be that Is 

the right way that this- this Canmittee should be going? · Thank you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN aJCCHINI: Cliff, do you think a six-month delay 

is going to be sufficient? 

MR.· SNEDEKER: I·think·in six nonths, with sane encouragement 

that you can find another vendor, · or maybe Sears- Sears expressed an 

· interest and J .c. Penneys, and I think there are many stores out there 

that, if you .can work with them the right way, that you could get 
. . . 

agencies on a limited basis for•. photo · IDs in sane ccmnercial stores 

. with better hours. And I think that is the Wa!J to go. Yes, six nonths . 

would be enough. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHIN;I: Do you think we need to make this ·. 

mandatory·for drivers throughout the State sanewhere·up the road? 

MR. SNEDEKER: Well, you have made it mandatory. . Every state 

in the nation has mandatory photo IDs, so New Jersey is not different 

than any other state. 

states. 

New Jersey and New York are the two last 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHINI.: Thirty-ei9ht states have photo IDs, I 

believe, presently. 

MR. SNEDEKER: All of them has far as my kn~ledge- to my 

kn~ledge they were all in •.. New York was the last state to do that 

last year. I understand in Florida they~e doing it. Their delay, in 

Florida, . is anywhere £ran ~ree ,£~ 1-·$f¥·;•ti&rs to wait in line to get 

your photo ID taken. They have appointnents in Florida. we checked ·· 

that' out. SO that~ there are delays in states. They have the same 

headache. In fact, other states asked us, when we talked about Sears, 

that once we got Sears, they wanted to do the same thing and they were 

. very interested i~ the program. 

ASsEMBLYMAN ·. HERMAN: I'm sorry--: 

ASSF.MBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I'm sorry, Cliff •. · Mr. Pelly? 

ASSeMBLYMAN PELLY: I have just two questions, Mr. Snedeker. 

I'm trying to understand h~ Motor Vehicle agents are paid. And as I 

understand it, they are paid on the number of transactions· that occur 

during. the period of a ~nth or a certain num-- length of time. Is 

that accurate? 

MR. SNEDEKER: Yes. They are paid by · the volwne that they 

• do. Not in the noney volume, b.Jt by item volume. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN PELLY: Item volume? HCM often are they paid? 
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MR. SNEDEKER: They are paid once or twice a :rronth. I 

believe it was on a twice-a-:rronth basis. It is reported with the 

canputers. It is very easy to do nCM because we can just count the 

number of items. we don't care about the :rroney value of those items, 

just. the m.11:nber of items that they do. And they are paid on that 

basis, I believe, twice a:rront}l. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Just one final question. · Who prepared 

your letter of resignation? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: You did personally? 

MR. SNEDEKER: I dictated my letter personally to my 

secretary. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: '!hank you.· 

ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI: Cliff, I asked Bob before aoo the 

Attorney General: Did you ever see this? (hands material to Mr. 

Snedeker) Somebody gave this to ne the. other day regarding- I 'rn 
still trying to put-- Bob, do you think you will be able to find out 

where that comes fran? 

MR. KLINE: I think it is fran a personnel manual. 

MR. SNEDEKER: No., neve~ saw that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: · Because it is segments of it as 

opposed to-

MR. SNEDEKER: No, never saw that. 

MR. KLINE: I think :it is convoluted. You have one part of a 

job description and then you have sooiething in there fran personnel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BO:CHINI:. Can I get that whole personnel 

manual? I'm just--

MR. SNEDEKER: No, I never saw it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: I don't knCM why sanebody would take 

the time to just scotch tape it to the back of our law office door, but 

if they took the time to do that, maybe I '11 take the time to skim 

through the darn thing to see if I can fioo anything else out. 

MR. KLINE: All right. Could I get a copy of that so I can 

piece it together? 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: Yeah. MY other questions? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman,' I ·would' .reCORIOOnd-- ,' I 

think that we have a piece of legislation, Assemblywoman Kalik's bill;_ 

· I know A-3610 is listed this afternoon without reference. 

Assemblywoman Kalik's bill, I· think, is a matter that we should take 

· up-- .· up at another• Carmi tt~ another carrni tt~ I' 11 need a whole 

new set of papers here, Mr. Chairman- at a regular Ccmnittee meeting, 
J ' 

so that we can discuss the full ramifications, how much further we want 

to go with that bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN B:>CCHINI: I agree. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: There are a lot of things that·. we want 

to do with that to expand it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I agree with you. I~ not so certain 

that even with one additional Carmi ttee that we will be able to put 

into the proper frame, unless we have sate RDre substantive input fran 

the Division of Motor Vehicle and other concerned parties, as far as 

Barbara Kalik's bill is concerned. 

However, if I may, to the ,Coomittee, in relation to A-3610, 

is there any q>inion fran members of this Coomittee as to the language 

in that particular legislation at this :p:>int which. delays it until 

January 200 of 1982? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: 1986. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ecx::aUNI: 86, thank you. 1986, and limits it to 

those persons, I believe, 21 and under. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: I would just like to note, because I 

think that many of us who worked on the legislation itself -- and. I 

think there was an observation in Cliff's initial meno of March 6th-. 

that the public itself finds the license and the photos a positive · 

thing, but the implenentation difficult. Rather than taking a position 

on whether we ought to limit it to an age, I would offer a RDtion that 

we report to the General . Assembly today that we exteoo the 

implementation date, at least, to Jan--· to June 30th, 1986, to give 

this Carmittee further time to explore the other areas of questioning, 

to give the Division time to look into sane alternative suggestions 

because, . as the Director noted in his Mardl 6th meno to the Chief of 

Staff and others, a positive- the program is positively perceived by 
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the public. It. is the implement,ation: tllcit is the cause for concern. I 

am quoting you properly, a~en*tI, sir? 

ft1R. SNEDEKER:" Yes, sir. . . . .. . . . 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: .so~ I WOl.ild offer that my IOC>tion that we 
-- even .if it takes an emergency vote today -. that if. the bill on the · 

floor is until January 1 , 1986; . I would suggest that that bill be 
- . 

amended to just. be- an extender of the existing · implementation law to 

June 30, 1986, in order to allCM this body to have a rore extensive 

discussion in coope~ in conjunction with the other bill. I would 

offer that rotion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN EOCCHINI: 'Any discussion, besides mine? My 

concern is, if I ID.81f, Marty, if relation to that, I perceive delays _ · 

sanetimes,, just total procrastination· and nothing ever being 

accanplished. · What I am driving it is if you have a six-ronth delay, 

hopefully, the Oeparbnent or the_ Division will rove as expeditiously as 

possible. Extending it to June says, "Well, ·we'll get around to it; we 
d9n' t necessarily have to do_ it right nCM ~" I · think possibly, if 

. . . . 

necessary, I would like to have the burden ori the Division--

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: . I would amend that. But the point I do 

want to make, based on the IneitOs .I read arrl based on the ·numbers of us 

that worked- on. photo licensing and based on public perception, just 

leave it with the extender to January 1 , . 1986, and not change the 

substantive part of. the law W1til you have an opportunity for further 

dialogue. 

ASSEMaLYMAN S:::X::CHINI: Oh, I am very firm in my belief about 

limiting -the age brackets on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: · You have to remember that this is _ a 

t\ll'CrHouse Legislature. I believe, at last look, that there was a 

sponsor Of the bill in the other House. 

ASSEMBLYMAN · BOCCHINI: . '!he sponsor in the other House, 

according to what I. understand, indicated to Ire that he ~ld like ·to 

see that - and t:.his, I would like to hear fran the Camlittee - that 
·. . : . 

he would like. to see_it q>tional for those over the age of 21. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: . I have no problem discussing that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BJCCHINI: we' re speaking in reference to Senator 

Graves, who has placed similar legislation in the Senate, gentlemen. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Mr •. Photo Licensing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Mr. Photogenic~ I mean Mr. Photo 

Licensing, that's oorrect •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am prepared to support the bill as it 

.stands. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Mr:f thoughts, though, Bob, in relation 

to making it optional beyond 21? 

21, is-

ASSEMBLYMAN. HERMAN: What does your bill say in making­

ASS~YMAN. BOCCEUNI:. ( interrupting) Our- my bill, under 

ASSEMBLYMAN· HERMAN: Mandatory? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Is mandatory. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: O\Ter 21 is optional? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX;CHINI: O\Ter 21 is nothing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I w:>uld support the optional factor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Aioond the bill then. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARl'IN: I think there may be individuals who 

well may feel that they want · to go through whatever administrative 

problems that they have to get a license. I think it is fair to say 

that many people do use it as~ form of identification, and if that is 

so, what they choose to, I w:>uld support the lllaking it.optional. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: As long as the bill says that, but I 

don't think we ought to take that right tMay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Frank, is that all right with you? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLY: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: If that is the case, Aggie,. will you 

have amendments prepared-- ( confers with Cammi ttee) It's not because 

.it is a delay, all right? Frank pointed out to me very adequately that 

that is, in effect, a adoption of Assemblyman Patero' s bill. Patero­

Assemblyrnan Patero's bill does, in fact, provide for 21 with a option 

over. However, the difference being here is that this has the delay in 

it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: we can ameoo the bills on the floor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: No, that's a bill- Excuse me? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Let rre withdraw my rn:::>tion, making a rn:::>re 

generic rn:::>tion. Say that the bill that ought to be implemented," as a 

recomnendation-

ASSEMBLYMAN BCXXH!NI: (interrupting) I don't think I need a 

notion, Marty, because it is not in Canmittee for hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: You can get up- We have done it in 

other coomittees, but you can get up on the floor, as the Olairman of 

the Camrittee and make, under personal privilege, a report to the 

General Assembly as to what the rn:::>tion is. I would make arn:::>tion that 

we so authorized, as a result of this hearing, to recamend--

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: (interrupting) I would 1 ike to wrap 

this up as quickly as possible, Mr. Herman, without the benefit of the 

rules and procedure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Olairman, my problem with this is 

you are asking us to implement Assemblyman Patero's bill, which is 
really not on our agenda today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I 'rn not. I am saying to you, in 
essence, when you make that anendrrent, you are in fact anending this 

bill to be similar to that of Assemblyman Patero's bill. They are not 

the exact sane in substance because Assemblyman Patero's bill does not 

delay the implementation. They are two different bills. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I appreciate that. But it makes 

permanent, doesn't it, the issue of whether people over 21 will have-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: (interrupting) We are not discussing 

Assemblyman Patero's bill •Other than the parallel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Do you want to conclude? 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCOUNI: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: Do you mind if I of fer the motion? I 

would motion that the Chairman be authorized to report to the General 

Assembly that the bills on the floor, in whatever fashion that they 

are, be amended to provide that there be-- there be a delay of the 
implementation date to January 1, 1986, and that there be age under-21 

mandatory and over age 21 permissive, optional, however they would be 
on those two bills. I'll leave the drafting to the sponsors. 
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MR. KLINE: Mr. Chainnan, if I could make one. 

recarmendation. I think one voice that has not been heard in these 

hearings that should, in regard to the photo license issue, is the law 

enforcemant canmunity. And I. would just advise that possibly, if you 

do have time, you--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCX:CHINI: ( interrupting} This is a six-nonth 

delay, Mr. Kline. 

MR. KLINE: All right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: And the purpose for the delay is in 

order to allow us to gather infonnation. 

MR. KLINE: Fine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCCCHINI: I will tell you that I did have a 

personal conversation with Tom Murphy, the president of the Trenton 

PBA, and he thinks that the licenses are absolutely terrible. He 

thinks they don't work well. He says his off ice rs has designat-­

looking at the things and he thinks that sare other type of a license 

should be compiled for the purposes of law enforcement officials. 

MR. KLINE: Well, as long as you take that into 

consideration. That was all I was trying to point out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: They are sare of the areas we will 

be looking into as a Conmittee, while you, at the same time, are 

looking into how the establishnent-- how to establish the program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Chairman, I will second Mr• · 

Hennan's notion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: Fine. 

MS. SZILAGYI: Whidl bill is he talking about it? . 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCX:CHINI: In effect, he is saying make it like 

Graves' bill. 

MS. SZILAGYI: Patero's and yours? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: No, no, you'r~ Patero's bill is not 

a subject matter of this Conrnittee. Nick, is-- A-3610, and confonn it 

to Graves' present bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: That's what I said. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BXCHINI: ( to Coomi ttee rrernber} Over in the 

Senate. Okay? We need a. vote on that? All in favor? 
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COOMITI'EE MEMBERS: (in unison) Aye. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BCX:CHINI: Thank you. There being no- any 

other further-- · Is there any other further business? Let' s not hear 

it right now, if there is. 

Cliff, I would indicate to you I appreciate your being here. 

I would also indicate to Cliff, I think you really took the-­

ASSEMBLYMAN HERMAN: (interrupting) The shaft. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOXHINI: (continuing} -the shaft and the 

fall. And what goes around, canes around, and I can't wait till it 
canes around to the other guys. 

MR. SNEDEKER: Thank you. 
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NEW JERSEY STATUTES ANNOTATED (NJSA) 39:3-lOg 

39-.3-lOg. Rules and rqulations; fee 
The director is authorized, empowered and directed to promulgate rules and 

regulations governing the size, type and other essential characteristics of the color 
photograph and its affixation to the driver's license. The fee for. such photograph 
shall .be fixed by the director based upon the actual cost incurred by the Division of 
Motor Vehicles in the implementation and administration of this act, but shall not 
exceed $1.50 for each license or renewal thereof, and shall be in addition to the fee 
presently authorized for the issuance ~fa driver's license pursuant t.o R.S. 39:3-10. 
L.1979, c. 261, § 2. 



NEW JERSEY STATUTES ANNOTATED (NJSA) 39:3-3 

39:3-3. Registration and licensing agents; fees 

The director shall designate at least 1 person in each county 
for each 300,000 inhabitants or fraction thereof to be his agent 
for the registering of motor vehicles, issuing registration certifi­
cates and licensing of drivers, subject to the requirements of 
this subtitle and to any rules and regulations the director impos­
es. The agent shall so act until his authority is revoked by the · 
director. All moneys received by such agents for registrations 
a.nd licenses granted under the provisions of this chapter shall 
forthwith be deposited as received with the State Treasurer. 
The fee allowed the agent for registration certificates issued by 
him and for every license granted by him shall be fixed by the 
director on the basis of the registration or license fees collected 
by the agent. The director may limit the fee so paid to a maxi­
mum. Such fee shall be paid to the agent by the State Treasur­
er upon the voucher of the director in the same manner as other 
State expenses are paid. 
Amended by L.1955, c. 8, p. 41, § 2; L.1959, c. 145, p. 587, § 1. 
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RWIN I. KIMMELMAN 
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DIRECTOR 

TO: Greg Stevens 
Chief of Staff 

FROM: Clifford W. Snedeker 
Director 

RE: Photo Licensing 

PROBLEM 

M E M O R 'A N D U M 

DATE: March(>, 1985 

.. ~ 

In December 1981, the law implementing photo licenses for all New 
Jersey motorists was enacted. The law provided that all initial 
motor vehicle licenses issued to persons 21 years of age or older on 
or after May 1, 1982, would be photo licenses. It further provi~ed 
that every renewal of a motor vehicle license issued to persons 
after January 1984, would be a photo license. According to the 
statute, the transition to the photograph on driver licenses was to 
occur in 1982 and 1983. In order to provide for an orderly 
implementation of this statute, OMV did not begin issuing photos 
with initial licenses until January 1984 and with renewals until 
March 1984. No photo licenses were issued as renewals in 1982 and 
1983 as was provided for in the law because only eight motor vehicle 
agencies were computerized. 

The sponsor of the photo license law, Senator Frank Graves, was 
extremely critical of the Division for not complying with the 
provisions of the statute concerning implementation. Senator Graves 
has repeatedly requested that the Division do everything possible to 
make the photo licensing program a success. Initial reaction by 
motorists who were selected to receive photo licenses was negative. 
These motorists were asked to go to the various motor vehicle 
agencies that were computerized in order to have their photos taken. 
Due to •the fact that not all the agencies were computerized the 
motorists experienced, in many instances, long waiting times in 
obtaining their photo license. As a result, the Division decided to 
postpone any further selection of motorists for the photo licensing 
program until all of the motor vehicle agencies were computerized. 
The computerization process was delayed due to the lack of 
legislative approval of various agency leases. However, the 
Division did allow those motorists who voluntarily wanted their photo 
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license to obtain them at computerized agencies. This has resulted 
in approximately 50,000 photo licenses being issued every month at 
State agencies. 

INTERIM SOLUTION 

The Di.vision believes that New Jersey motorists prefer photo licenses. 
However, motorists do not like the manner in which they must acquire 
their photo license. To alleviate inconvenience, .we have taken all 
steps necessary to ensure the computerization of all 50 agencies. By 
May l, 1985, the computerization of the remaining seven agencies will 
be completed. Currently, 43 agencies are computerized. 

It was determined that the 50 outlets for photo licenses were 
inconvenient because they did not provide night or weekend hours for 
the public. Therefore, OMV instituted evening hours one night a week 
and Saturday morning hours at all agencies. These. hours have been 
very unpopular wich the Agents. To alert the public to the evening 
and weekend hours, the Division placed advertisements in various 
newspapers during the past several months. This was don~ at a time 
when we were not selecting motorists for the photo licenses. The 
only photo licenses that were issued were to those motorists who 
wanted them. The foregoing steps were taken as measures to gear up 
for full implementation of the photo license program. 

LONG TERM SOLUTION 

In an effort to prevent persons selected for a photo license from 
being inconvenienced, the Division engaged in negotiations with Sears 
and Roebuck Company in order to have the various Sears outlets in New 
Jersey as photo licensing centers. Sears was chosen based upon the 
many locations that they have throughout the State. Their locations 
are in major malls that are accessible to the public with adequate 
parking facilities. Sears stores are open seven days a week, 9:30 
a.m. to 9:30 p.m. It was determined that this type of retail 
operation would ensure that an individual could be selected for a 
photo license and have minimal inconvenience when being processed for 
that license. ~· 

After discussions with Sears, it was learned that they would handle 
this type of transaction as they do with various other services they 
provide - through concession. The.logical choice for implementing 
the pho~o licensing program at Sears was determined, by both the 
Division and Sears executives, to be the Sears Driving Schools. 

The Sears Driving Schools are operated in New Jersey by Taggart 
International which is a commercial driving school. Both Sears and 
the Division agree that Taggart's reputation and performance record 
is one that would guarantee the succ~ss of this program. 
Accordingly, it was determined, after discussions with Sears and 
Taggart International, that initially, the Division would place photo 
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licensing centers in 18 of the Sears stores throughout the State~ 
This will result in a total. of 67 locations that the public will have 
to obtain their photo license. 

The advantages of Sears outlets for photo licensing is that besides 
· the hours,. accessibility, and parking, the cost to the State is much 
less. The State will not have to pay rent, insurance, or the other 
costs associated with a leased facility as is currently the case with 
our agencies. 

POLICY QUESTIONS 

The administration must determine themanner in which they want to 
announce the implementation of this program. The Division is now in 
the process of getting the 18 Sears centers on-line by May 1, in 
order to begin issuing photo licenses for the June driver license 
renewals. 

At this point, many individuals are working on this project 
need for a public announcement is obvious •. A decision tnu!;t 
as to how this.type of program should be announced in order 
the likelihood of it being discovered by the press prior to 
on-line in May. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

,·' 
and the 
be made 
to avoid 
its going.· 

The Division recommends that an announcement be made as soon as 
possible concerning this program. It is our opinion· that once the· 
public is informed that it can go to a Sears location any day or 

. evening seven days a week, the public will opt for the Sears stores 
over the motor vehicle agencies. Thet'e is still Ct'iticism of the. 
photo licensing pt'ogram by Senator Graves and other critics who have 
objected to it because of the inconvenience of the process rather 
than the photolicense itself. It is our firm opinion that Sears~ 

•participation will turn the criticized photo license program into 
one c.ha.t will be praised. It will be a model for other sta.tes which 
experience the same problems in administering photo licensing as New 

. Jersey. New Jersey will be the first in the ·nation to implement this 
'program with. Sears. That fact alone should generate a lot of 
positive publicity •. 

Your prompt attention to this matter will be gt'eatly.appreciated. 
,Please contact me·should you have any questions concerning the 
foregoing. 
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'IRWIN L KIM.MELMAN 
. ATTORNEY ,GENERAL. 

TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 01866 

M. EMO RAND UM 

CLIFFORD W .. SNEDEKER 
DIRECTOR · 

TO: Honorable Greg Stevens 
Chief of Staff 

FROM: Clifford W •. ·Snedeker, · Director 
Division of Motor Vehicles ·· 

RE: Photo Licensing 

DATE: April 11, 1985 

• Pursuant to your request;· I am responding to your inquiry as to why' ·· 
both the Department of Law and Public Safety arid the Division of 
Motor Vehicles failed to disclose the name of William Taggart when 
they announced the, availability of Sears stores for photo licensing 
on March 13, 1985. Rather than recounting. the year long negotiations 
betwe.en Sears and Mr. Taggart concerning this new program, I have ·. 
dectded to Sttach my }larch 6, ·· 1985 memo to you which suillmarizes the 
rationale for appointing Mr. Taggart as the agent to run the photo 
licensing concessions to be located iri the Sears stores. 

The fc;1.i1ure to disclose the :i,nvolvement of Mr. Taggart in the 
·operation of the proposed photo licensing network at .the Sears 
stores was, in hindsight,- poor j1,1dgment. However, .there was never 
the intention on the part of the Division to deceive_ eitf:ter the.'>·- · 
press or the public as to identity of the individual who would be 
appointed as the agent for-this new program. Rather, it was the 
Division's iriterition to announce to the public a new program that 
would for all intents and purposes be identified as Sears Photo 
License Centers. throughout the State with the involvement of the 
agent being invisible due to the manner in which these centers would 

· be operated. 
- -

Cufren.tly, individ.uals may purchase items in Sears stores without 
ever realizing that they have been dealing with a vendor who is an 
approveq concessionaire of Sears. This is true in the case of 
tobac:c:o and other assorted purchases tha_t one can make in a Sears 
store. Accordingly, it was the Division's opinion that the motoring 
public would only identify with the.retailer not the agent 
concessionaire, because ·they would be transacting their business at 
a Sears store not at. a Taggart store. · 

4--'{ · 
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Furthermore,, Hr. Taggart' s appointment as an agent can be 
differentiated from previous appointments by the fact that Mr. 
Taggart's approval by Sears to operate the photo licensing concession 
was necessary in order for him to be ap~ointed as the motor vehicle 
agent for this unique program. 

In conclusion, I hope that the Division's poor judgment in disclosing 
Mr. Taggart's involvement does not in any way diminish the significant 
programatic improvement that both Sears and Mr. Taggart's involvement 
will make in the distribution of photo license to New Jersey 
motorists. Both Sears and Mr. Taggart are exceptionally well 
qualified to make this a successful program based upon their excellent 
reputations in the business community. 

~-


